
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
If you have a disability requiring accommodations, please contact the Capital Region Transportation Planning 

Agency at (850) 891-8630.  The telephone number of the Florida Relay TDD Service is # 711. 
 

“Public Participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status.  Persons who 
require special accommodations under the Americans With Disabilities Act, or persons who require translation services (free of charge) 

should contact the CRTPA Title VI Coordinator, Suzanne Lex, four days in advance of the meeting at 850-891-8627 
(Suzanne.Lex@crtpa,org”) and for the hearing impaired, telephone 711 or 800-955-8771 (TDY).” 

 
“La participación pública se solicita sin distinción de raza, color, nacionalidad, edad, sexo, religión, discapacidad o estado familiar. Las 
personas que requieran adaptaciones especiales en virtud de la Ley de Americanos con Discapacidades, o las personas que requieran 

servicios de traducción (sin cargo) deben comunicarse con Suzanne Lex, CRTPA Coordinadora del Título VI, al 850-891-8627  
Suzanne.lex@crtpa.org)  y para las personas con discapacidad auditiva, teléfono 711 o 800-955-8771 (TDY ) cuatro días antes de la 

reunión. 

 

   

 CRTPA BOARD 
 

MEETING OF MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2024, AT 1:30 PM  
 

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
300 S. ADAMS STREET 

TALLAHASSEE, FL  32301 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
“The mission of the CRTPA is to act as the principal forum for collective transportation policy discussions that results in the 
development of a long range transportation plan which creates an integrated regional multimodal transportation network 

that supports sustainable development patterns and promotes economic growth.” 
 

FINAL AGENDA  
 
Citizens wishing to provide input at the CRTPA meeting may: 

 
(1) Provide comments in person at the meeting. Speakers are requested to limit their 

comments to three (3) minutes; or 
(2) Submit written comments prior to the meeting at http://crtpa.org/contact-us/  by providing 

comments in the “Email Us” portion of the page before 5:00 p.m. on Friday, September 13 
This will allow time for comments to be provided to CRTPA members in advance of the 
meeting. Comments submitted after this time (up to the time of the meeting) will be 
accepted and included in the official record of the meeting; or 

(3) Provide live comments during the meeting virtually by registering before 5:00 p.m. on 
Friday, September 13 at http://crtpa.org/contact-us/ and noting your desire to provide 
comments via video in the “Email Us” portion of the page along with the agenda item or 
issue your wish to discuss.  You will be contacted by CRTPA staff and provided with a link to 
virtually access the meeting and provide your comment during the meeting. Speakers are 
requested to limit their comments to three (3) minutes. 

 
The public is invited to view the meeting’s live broadcast on 
https://www.talgov.com/cotnews/wcot.aspx  or Comcast Channel 13 (WCOT-13).   

mailto:Suzanne.Lex@crtpa,org
mailto:Suzanne.lex@crtpa.org
http://crtpa.org/contact-us/
http://crtpa.org/contact-us/
https://www.talgov.com/cotnews/wcot.aspx


September 16, 2024 CRTPA Board Meeting Agenda                                                                                           Page 2 
 
 

 

 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

 
2. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA 
 

This portion of the agenda is provided to allow for public input on general CRTPA issues that are 
not included on the meeting’s agenda. Speakers are requested to limit their comments to three 
(3) minutes.   

 
 

4.  CONSENT AGENDA  
 
A. Minutes of the June 17, 2024, CRTPA Meeting 
B. Executive Director’s Evaluation 
C. Executive Director’s Timesheet Approval (April-June) 
D. CRTPA Attorney Contract 

 
5.  CONSENT ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION 
 

  
6. CRTPA ACTION 

 
The public is welcome to comment on any discussion item after a motion has been made and 
seconded.  Each member of the public is provided three (3) minutes to address the CRTPA. 
 
A. Florida Transportation Plan (FTP) Update 

 
The Florida Department of Transportation will provide an update on the development of 
the 2055 FTP. 

 
 
B. CRTPA Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Financial Statements 

A presentation on the findings of the annual audit of the CRTPA will be provided. 
 
 
C. CRTPA Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 Budget 

The CRTPA’s budget for Fiscal Year 2025 has been developed for discussion and approval.  
This discussion will include the proportional share payments. 



September 16, 2024 CRTPA Board Meeting Agenda   Page 3 

D. CRTPA Year 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) Kickoff
The initiation of the development of the CRTPA’s long range transportation plan will be
discussed.

E. N. Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan 
The North Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan has been developed for CRTPA 
approval.  The plan was developed to identify potential safety improvements along the N. 
Monroe corridor and included development of a federal grant application. 

7. FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REPORT

A status report on FDOT activities will be provided.

8. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A status report on CRTPA activities will be provided including information related to the
CRTPA’s Apportionment Plan.

10. CRTPA INFORMATION

A. Future Meeting Dates (Next Board Meeting Tuesday, October 15, 2024)
B. CRTPA Committee Actions
C. Utilization Report
D. Correspondence

11. ITEMS FROM CRTPA BOARD MEMBERS

This portion of the agenda is provided to allow members an opportunity to discuss and request
action on items and issues relevant to the CRTPA.

12. ADJOURNMENT



 September 16, 2024 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4 A 

 
MINUTES 

 
TYPE OF ITEM: Consent 

   
 
The minutes from the June 17, 2024, CRTPA Meeting are provided as Attachment 1. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Option 1:   Approve the minutes of the June 17, 2024, CRTPA Meeting.  
 

 
ATTACHMENT 
 
Attachment 1: Minutes of the June 17, 2024, CRTPA Meeting 
 
 
 



 CRTPA BOARD 

MEETING OF MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2024 AT 1:30 PM 

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
300 S. ADAMS STREET 

TALLAHASSEE, FL  32301 

MISSION STATEMENT 
“The mission of the CRTPA is to act as the principal forum for collective transportation policy discussions that results in the 
development of a long range transportation plan which creates an integrated regional multimodal transportation network 

that supports sustainable development patterns and promotes economic growth.” 

Meeting Minutes 

Members Present:   
Commissioner Messersmith, Chair, Wakulla County 
Commissioner Williams-Cox, Vice Chair, City of Tallahassee 
Commissioner Goldwire, Gadsden Municipalities 
Commissioner Nesmith, Gadsden County 
Commissioner Maddox, Leon County (Virtual) 
Commissioner Minor, Leon County  
Commissioner O’Keefe, Leon County 
Commissioner Matlow, City of Tallahassee 
Commissioner Richardson, City of Tallahassee 

Staff Present: Greg Slay, CRTPA; Jack Kostrzewa, CRTPA; Greg Burke, CRTPA; Suzanne Lex, CRTPA; 
Yulonda Mitchell, CRTPA; Bryant Paulk, FDOT; Chris Rietow, ARPC; Andrea Rosser, StarMetro  

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 1:30 PM, with a roll call and a quorum present.  Commissioner 
Richardson made a motion to allow Commissioner Maddox to attend the meeting virtually.  
Commissioner Minor seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously passed.   

2. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS

Mr. Slay stated there was a modification to remove Agenda Item 4B CRTPA Attorney Contract Extension. 
He noted that after speaking with the Attorney, there were a few corrections that needed to be made.  
Mr. Slay stated that the item would be brought back to the Executive Committee and then to the full 
Board for approval at a later date.   

ATTACHMENT 1



June 17, 2024, CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes                                                                                          Page 2 
 
 

 

 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA 
 

This portion of the agenda is provided to allow for public input on general CRTPA issues that are 
not included on the meeting’s agenda.  No members of the public requested to speak. 

 
 
4.  CONSENT AGENDA  

 
A. Minutes of the May 21 CRTPA Meeting 

 
Board Action:  Commissioner Matlow made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner 
Richardson seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously passed.   

 
5.  CONSENT ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
 
6.  ROLL CALL VOTE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

A. Fiscal Year (FY) 2025– FY 2029 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Adoption 
 
The FY 2025 – FY 2029 TIP reflecting the projects that have received funding in the Florida 
Department of Transportation Work Program has been developed for Board adoption. 

 
Ms. Lex explained the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) is adopted annually and is the CRTPA’s 
five-year work program which outlines transportation projects, as well as funding for maintenance, 
operations, ITS systems, and all modes of transportation. Continuing, she explained the TIP is a 
requirement for Federal and State governments and noted the board would approve the updated FY 
2025– FY 2029 TIP at the June 17, 2024, Board Meeting.   
 
Ms. Lex presented information on the FY 2025 – FY 2029 TIP.  The first point discussed was the public 
involvement, which included the requirement to hold public meetings.   Public meetings were noticed as 
a display ad in the local newspapers, on the CRTPA’s Facebook page, website, and distributed to the 
interested parties contact list and the local government contacts. The dates and locations for public 
meetings for TIP and PPLs was provided.  
 
Ms. Lex outlined the funding for the FY 2025- FY 2029 TIP for the counties in the Region by TIP category, 
noting a large amount of the funding for Jefferson and Gadsden counties are for resurfacing projects on 
I-10, explaining the state was required to maintain 80% good pavement conditions on the state 
roadways and 90% good pavement conditions on the Strategic Intermodal System (SIS).   

• Airport Improvement Projects for the Quincy Regional Airport and the Tallahassee International 
Airport reflect Federal and State funding.   

• Bike/Ped Projects include the sidewalk projects on Old St. Augustine, N. Monroe and Paul Russell 
Road and the MLK Project Shared Use Path, the latter two were funded by the Transportation 
Alternatives Program.   



June 17, 2024, CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes                                                                                          Page 3 
 
 

 

 

• Major Capacity Projects funded in the upcoming FDOT Work Program are SR 263 Capital Circle 
and the Welaunee Boulevard.  

• StarMetro Transit Projects reflect local and federal funding programmed for operations and fixed 
routes.  In Jefferson, Wakulla and Gadsden Counties, the funding was provided for the 
transportation disadvantaged programs.  

• Bridge Projects funding totals 59 million dollars. Maintenance and inspection of bridges is a 
requirement of FDOT.  

• Resurfacing Projects are the largest portion of the work program at 78 million dollars in total. 
 

Commissioner Nesmith asked about the total for Gadsden County and requested a copy of the Gadsden 
County TIP.  Ms. Lex stated she would provide a copy for any member for any county.  Commissioner 
Richard discussed the City’s efforts to reach the goal of moving the bus fleet to electric buses.   
Board Action:  Commissioner Nesmith made a motion to adopt the Fiscal Year (FY) 2025– FY 2029 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  Commissioner Minor seconded the motion, a roll call 
vote was conducted, and the motion was unanimously passed.   
 

B.  Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 – FY 2028 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment  
 

  This item seeks Board adoption of an amendment to the FY 2024 – FY 2028 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) to include the following projects: 

 
• StarMetro Section 5339 Low or No Emission Grant: Provides FY 2023 FTA money in 

the amount of $8,004,790 and the City of Tallahassee match in the amount of $2.4 
million to fund StarMetro’s Rolling Stock Project. This funding replaces four 35’ 
and four 40’ diesel buses with battery electric buses of the same size. (Leon 
County) 

• StarMetro Section 5339 Capital Items Project: Provides FY 2023 FTA funding 
in the amount of $12,366,002 and the City of Tallahassee local funding match 
in the amount of $1,511,546 for the design, construction, and installation of 
Phase One of the Charging Infrastructure at the Appleyard facility, along with 
funding for workforce development. (Leon County)  

• SR 366/Pensacola Street from the Railroad Overpass to SR366/Stadium Drive: 
Provides $14,483,177 in federal, state, and local funding in FY 2025 for the 
resurfacing of Pensacola Street. (Leon County)  
 

Ms. Lex discussed the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 – FY 2028 Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) Amendment.  She explained these funds needs to be reflected in the CRTPA TIP to receive 
authorization from the FTA, this has been put in the TIP as an informational item.  
 
Commissioner Minor stated the Pensacola Street needs some attention.  He noted the 
resurfacing project comes at a good time as private investor has shown interested in this area.  
This shows investors that this area would be a good area to invest in.  Commissioner 
Richardson noted the City of Tallahassee would continue to move toward the goal of an electric 
fleet to lower the carbon footprint and elevate environmental problems.   Mr. Slay noted the 



June 17, 2024, CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes                                                                                          Page 4 
 
 

 

 

StarMetro staff put in the work to apply for grants and has been getting awarded.  
Commissioner Williams-Cox discussed the improvements on Pensacola Street to improve safety 
in the area through collaboration and partnerships.     
 
Board Action:  Commissioner Minor made a motion to adopt the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 – FY 2028 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment.  Commissioner Richardson seconded the 
motion, a roll call vote was conducted, and the motion was unanimously passed.   
 
7. CRTPA ACTION 

 
A. Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 – FY 2030 Project Priority Lists (PPLs)   

 
The FY 2026 – 2030 Project Priority Lists has been developed for Board adoption. The 
following lists have been developed for Board approval: 
 
1. Regional Mobility Plan (RMP) Roadways Project Priority List 
2. Regional Mobility Plan (RMP) Bicycle and Pedestrian Project Priority List 
3. Regional Trails Project Priority List 
4.   Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Project Priority List 
5.   Tallahassee International Airport Project Priority List 
6. StarMetro Project Priority List 
7.  Urban Attributable Allocations Project Priority List 
 

Ms. Lex outlined the Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 – FY 2030 Project Priority Lists (PPLs).  The lists are developed 
by the projects listed in the CRTPA’s Long Range Transportation Plan (Regional Mobility Plan) and other 
plans developed by StarMetro, the Tallahassee Regional Airport and the competitive Transportation 
Alternatives Program.  She stated the PPLs identify projects and phases of projects that are not yet 
funded and are adopted annually.  PPLs are submitted to FDOT so that available funding can be 
programmed on the identified projects and then reflected in next year’s TIP.  Ms. Lex provided the 
public meetings schedule and locations.  
 
Ms. Lex provided highlights of projects on the Project Priority Lists.  Ms. Lex noted the number 2 priority 
on the Roadway List is now Crawfordville Road (Wakulla Arran Road to East Ivan Road) and has been on 
the list for several years but has moved up the list.   Orange Avenue and Crawfordville would be focused 
on for the next decade and funds are continually being added to these two projects.  Ms. Lex provided 
information on the Bike Ped List.  She noted the Old St. Augustine (Lafayette Street to Paul Russell), 
North Monroe Street (John Knox Road to Lake Shore Drive) and Paul Russell (Apalachee to Monday 
Road) have all been fully funded and therefore removed from the priority list.  Ms. Lex also stated the 
Project Priority #3, Wakulla Springs Trail Extension (Wakulla Springs State Park to Springhill Road), was 
on the Bike ped list for now but could potentially be moved to the Regional Trails List.   
 
Ms. Lex noted next steps will be transmitting the adopted PPLs to FDOT District 3 Secretary and to meet 
with FDOT in the summer of 2024 to discuss programming of priority projects.  Commissioner NeSmith 
asked if Gadsden submitted any projects to be on any of these lists.  Mr. Burke stated there were no 
projects submitted for consideration.  Commissioner Richard discussed the need for funding on Orange 



June 17, 2024, CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes                                                                                          Page 5 
 
 

 

 

Avenue corridor (Cypress Lake Road to the West to Capital Circle).  Ms. Lex stated there have been some 
discussions and would be under consideration next year.   Commissioner Minor asked if the segments 
help get funding versus have one larger project.  Mr. Slay stated the first two are capacity projects and 
stated that would not make a huge difference in obtaining funding but stated staff has discussed the 
issue and next year there may be a restructuring of the list.   
 
Board Action:  Commissioner Richardson made a motion to adopt the Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 – FY 2030 
Project Priority Lists (PPLs).  Commissioner NeSmith seconded the motion, and the motion was 
unanimously passed.   

 
B. CRTPA Public Involvement Plan Update 

This item seeks approval of the CRTPA’s updated Public Involvement Plan. 
 

Ms. Lex stated this was a major update to the Public Involvement Plan.  She stated there was a 
requirement to have a 45-day public comment period, ending on June 16, 2024.  Ms. Lex outlined the 
updates to the plan, noting the plan has been streamlined to group information on meetings, plans and 
programs together.  The plan includes updates to information on the Executive Committee and 
emergency meetings, meeting schedules, and how to become involved.  Ms. Lex also noted the goals of 
the plan were to inform, involve, engage and collaborate and techniques and strategies will be 
evaluated annually.  Ms. Lex stated there would be a collaboration with the Title VI Coordinator to 
ensure all requirements are met.  Lastly Ms. Lex outlined the next steps.  After approval the plan will be 
reformatted, and graphics will be added; Notice in the fall for a 45-day comment period for the minor 
update to the plan.  An additional board approval will be at the next regularly scheduled meeting after 
the 45-day comment period.   
 
Commissioner Williams-Cox asked how to reach certain demographics in the age groups 18-35 or 35-40 
to get involved.  Ms. Lex expressed the difficulty with keeping citizens of all demographic groups 
engaged and involved due to the longevity of these types of projects and noted she would be conducting 
peer review to find ways to reach those groups.  Ms. Lex noted the one of the main goals will be moving 
toward a mobile first platform to ensure all of the CRTPA’s engagement may be done using a mobile 
phone.  
 
Board Action:  Commissioner Williams-Cox made a motion to approve the Public Involvement Plan.  
Commissioner Richardson seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously passed.   

 
8. FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REPORT  

 
Mr. Paulk noted the Department had one project to update the Board on.  Upcoming resurfacing on SR 
363/61 (Crawfordville Road turns into Adams, Bronough and Duval Streets) in its entirety of the 
segment. Also, resurfacing of the St. Marks Trail from (Ridge Road to Bragg Drive).  Mr. Paulk noted the 
project was at 60% design plans and should be finalized late in the fall or early winter.  Scheduled to let 
in May 2026 with a $10 million dollar construction estimate.  He stated there will be a virtual meeting 
update, which involves providing the information online for review, download, and provide comment.  
He noted this way of providing and receiving information has proven to be effective.  Mr. Paulk stated 



June 17, 2024, CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes                                                                                          Page 6 
 
 

 

 

the update to the project will be available on August 20, 2024, at the department’s website:  
nwflroads.com. 

 
 
9. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Slay stated that the CRTPA will soon initiate development of an application for the Safe Streets for 
All grant program.  The application will be for the West Tennessee Street corridor to develop 
improvements along the corridor.  He noted the scope for the LRTP 2050 was completed and there 
would be a project kickoff soon.  Lastly, Mr. Slay informed the board of helmet fitting event that was 
held the Walker Ford Community Center.  He noted about 50 kids received bicycle helmets at that event.  
Ms. Lex noted there will be a helmet fitter training on June 21 at the Frenchtown Renaissance Center.    

 
10. CRTPA INFORMATION PROVIDED 
 

A. Future Meeting Dates (Next Board Meeting Monday, September 16, 2024) 
B. CRTPA Committee Actions 

 
11. ITEMS FROM CRTPA BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Mr. Rietow, Apalachee ARPC, discussed having the CRTPA Executive Director serve as an ex-officio 
member on the ARPC Board.  Mr. Thornton Williams stated he would research the item and would bring 
information back to the board on the issue.   
Commissioner Williams-Cox asked Commissioner Minor to provide an update, as he provided to the 
Leon County Board of County Commissioners, regarding rail.  Commissioner Minor stated he attended a 
public meeting with the Southern Rail Commission and noted that the New Orleans to Mobile route was 
close to being operational in the next year.  He noted there were ongoing discussions between the City 
of Mobile and the State of Alabama regarding the cost of station upgrades in Mobile.  Commissioner 
Minor noted once that route was in operation, trains would be coming to Mobile and that is very close 
to the Florida State Line, justifying the need for rail to begin to come through North Florida.  He also 
noted that the Baton Rouge to New Orleans line in Louisiana will be moving forward.  Finally, 
Commissioner Minor discussed benefits in Florida joining the Southern Rail Commission noting that 
being a member of a muti-regional organization helps with applying for federal funds to help with rail 
restoration.  

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:02 pm.  

 



September 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 4 B 

 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ANNUAL EVALUATION

TYPE OF ITEM: Consent 

STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

The Executive Director’s performance evaluations were completed by the Executive Committee 
Members and are presented for final approval. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTION 

The CRTPA Executive Committee met on September 5, 2024 and discussed the evaluations. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Option 1:  Approve the revised Executive Director’s Evaluations for 2024. 
    (Recommended) 

Option 2: Provide other direction. 

ATTACHMENT 

Attachment 1 - 3:  Executive Director’s Evaluations for 2024 



ATTACHMENT 1





Executive Director Performance Review 

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION 

Name: Greg Slay Review Date: August 29, 2024 

REVIEW INFORMATION 

Reviewer Name: Rick Minor Review Period: July 18, 2023 – July 18, 2024 

Complete this review using the following scale: 

2 = EXCEEDS JOB EXPECTATIONS: Consistently exemplary performance, including in demanding situations or circumstances. 
1 = MEETS JOB EXPECTATIONS: Competent performance in most situations and circumstances. 
0 = PARTIALLY MEETS JOB EXPECTATIONS -- Shows capability, but in a variable manner. Improvement needed in key areas. 
X = DOES NOT MEET JOB EXPECTATIONS -- Major or ongoing problems that negatively impact organizational objectives. 

(Outstanding) (Good) (Needs Work) (Poor) 

EVALUATION 

2 1 0 X 

Maintains effective communications with 
and availability for the CRTPA Board  

Represents the CRTPA well, understands 
role, and implements the Board’s vision 

Understands and maintains compliance 
with Federal and State MPO requirements 

as they apply to the CRTPA 

Understands current trends and issues 
impacting the CRTPA and membership, 
informs the Governing Board as to their 
implications 

Hires and develops qualified staff 
appropriate for day-to-day operations and 
guides staff to achieve objectives 

Maintains public image of the CRTPA 
representing service, vitality and 

professionalism while enhancing the 
visibility and identity of the organization  

Builds relationships and encourages the 
creation of partnerships with other 
organizations that contribute to the 
CRTPA’s mission and vision 

Develops sound budgets for current and 
future revenues and expenses necessary 
to maintain daily and overall operations 

Meets challenges head on 

Manages assets including technology, 
equipment, budget, and office space  

ATTACHMENT 2



Encourages public involvement and 
maintains transparency for the Board, the 
public, and staff   

Inspires confidence, establishes credibility 
with the CRTPA Board 

Maintains a “big picture” outlook and is 
aware of industry issues 

Exhibits diligence in leading the CRTPA 

Forecasts trends, responds to change, and 
invites innovation 

Solicits and acts upon the ideas of others 
when appropriate 

Demonstrates excellence in carrying out 
job responsibilities and accomplishing 
goals 

Participates in relevant and worthwhile 
professional organizations 

Areas for improvement: 

None noted. 

Additional Comments: 

As the Executive Director for the CRTPA, Mr. Slay has consistently exceeded job expectations in each 

of the areas noted above.  He demonstrates professionalism with the Board, partners, staff, and 
citizens and is highly knowledgeable of federal and state MPO requirements.   

Mr. Slay is also very adept in his communication and transparency with Board members and citizens. 
On numerous occasions I have asked him to meet with me and members of the public to discuss 

CRTPA funding, new opportunities, and/or specific CRTPA projects.  For example, regarding the Safe 
Streets for All federal grant application for North Monroe, he consistently kept me updated on the 
application’s development, submittal, and federal review/evaluation process.  In addition, he listens 
intently to constituents’ concerns and shows a sincere interest in developing feasible solutions.  

In summary, Mr. Slay continues to be a great asset to the CRTPA and his service is of significant 
benefit to the people of the Capital Region. 



Executive Director Performance Review 
EMPLOYEE INFORMATION 

Name: Greg Slay Review Date: 
REVIEW INFORMATION 

Reviewer Name: Review Period: July 18, 2023 – July 18, 2024 
Complete this review using the following scale: 

2 = EXCEEDS JOB EXPECTATIONS: Consistently exemplary performance, including in demanding situations or circumstances. 
1 = MEETS JOB EXPECTATIONS: Competent performance in most situations and circumstances. 
0 = PARTIALLY MEETS JOB EXPECTATIONS -- Shows capability, but in a variable manner. Improvement needed in key areas. 
X = DOES NOT MEET JOB EXPECTATIONS -- Major or ongoing problems that negatively impact organizational objectives. 

(Outstanding) (Good) (Needs Work) (Poor) 

EVALUATION 
2 1 0 X 

Maintains effective communications with 
and availability for the CRTPA Board  

Represents the CRTPA well, understands 
role, and implements the Board’s vision 

Understands and maintains compliance 
with Federal and State MPO requirements 
as they apply to the CRTPA 

Understands current trends and issues 
impacting the CRTPA and membership, 
informs the Governing Board as to their 
implications 

Hires and develops qualified staff 
appropriate for day-to-day operations and 
guides staff to achieve objectives 

Maintains public image of the CRTPA 
representing service, vitality and 
professionalism while enhancing the 
visibility and identity of the organization  

Builds relationships and encourages the 
creation of partnerships with other 
organizations that contribute to the 
CRTPA’s mission and vision 

Develops sound budgets for current and 
future revenues and expenses necessary 
to maintain daily and overall operations 

Meets challenges head on 

Manages assets including technology, 
equipment, budget, and office space  

ATTACHMENT 3



Encourages public involvement and 
maintains transparency for the Board, the 
public, and staff   

Inspires confidence, establishes credibility 
with the CRTPA Board 

Maintains a “big picture” outlook and is 
aware of industry issues 

Exhibits diligence in leading the CRTPA 

Forecasts trends, responds to change, and 
invites innovation 

Solicits and acts upon the ideas of others 
when appropriate 

Demonstrates excellence in carrying out 
job responsibilities and accomplishing 
goals 

Participates in relevant and worthwhile 
professional organizations 

Areas for improvement:  N/A 

Additional Comments: N/A 



September 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 4C 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S QUARTERLY TIMESHEETS APPROVAL 

TYPE OF ITEM: Consent 

STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

This item seeks Board approval of the Executive Director’s timesheets for the last fiscal quarter (April 
1, 2024, through June 30, 2024).   

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Option 1:  Approve Executive Director’s timesheets for the period April 1, 2024, through 
June 30, 2024. 

BACKGROUND 

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) annually evaluates and certifies the CRTPA 
program activities. A component of the certification review is monitoring fiscal records and 
procedures.   One monitoring item requested is documentation that the Board or the Executive 
Committee has approved the Executive Director’s timesheets. 

As a result, staff is seeking Board approval of Greg Slay’s timesheets for the most recent fiscal quarter 
(April 1, 2024, through June 30, 2024).   

OPTIONS 

Option 1:  Approve Executive Director’s timesheets for the period of April 1, 2024, through 
June 30, 2024 (Recommended). 

Option 2:     CRTPA Board Discretion 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1: Executive Director’s Timesheets for April 1, 2024, through June 30, 2024 



EMP NAME:  Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 4/26/24

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 4/8/24 4/19/24

DEPT: 460101

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE

Mon 4/8/24
Tues 4/9/24
Wed 4/10/24
Thurs 4/11/24

Fri 4/12/24

Mon 4/15/24
Tues 4/16/24
Wed 4/17/24
Thurs 4/18/24

Fri 4/19/24 4

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the 
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period 
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

April 19, 2024
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET

ATTACHMENT 1



CRTPA TASK SHEET 

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 04/26/24
Payroll Range 04/08/24 thru 04/19/24

Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special

Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity

Mon 04/08/24 2 1 1 1 3 8 Admin, TransPlex prep, RMP, PPLs, N. Monroe,

Tues 04/09/24 2 2 1 3 8 PPLs, TIP, SS4A, N. Monroe

Wed 04/10/24 2 1 1 1 1 2 8 Admin, U-SDK, RMP, PPLs, Utah Trails, N. Monroe, SRTS

Thurs 04/11/24 2 1 1 2 2 8 U-SDK, RMP, PPLs, regional trails, N. Monroe

Fri 04/12/24 4 1 2 1 8 Admin, MPOAC P&R, Briefing - Minor, PPLs, N. Monroe

Mon 04/15/24 3 1 1 2 1 8 Admin, Staff meeting, PPLs, N. Monore

Tues 04/16/24 2 1 2 2 1 8 Admin, Board meeting, RMP, PPLs, PIP, N. Monroe

Wed 04/17/24 1 2 3 2 8 RMP, SR 267 Trail, N. Monroe

Thurs 04/18/24 2 2 2 2 8 Admin, PPLs, PIP, N. Monroe

Fri 04/19/24 7 1 8 Admin, TransPlex Prep, sick leave, N. Monroe



EMP NAME:  Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 5/10/24

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 4/22/24 5/3/24

DEPT: 460101

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE

Mon 4/22/24
Tues 4/23/24
Wed 4/24/24
Thurs 4/25/24

Fri 4/26/24

Mon 4/29/24
Tues 4/30/24
Wed 5/1/24 6
Thurs 5/2/24 6

Fri 5/3/24 6

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the 
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period 
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

May 3 2024
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET



CRTPA TASK SHEET 

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 05/10/24
Payroll Range 04/22/24 thru 05/03/24

Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special

Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity

Mon 04/22/24 3 1 1 3 8 Admin, staff meeting, T'ville Road Access Management Study, N. Monroe

Tues 04/23/24 2 1 1 1 1 2 8 Admin, crash data, RMP, N. Monore

Wed 04/24/24 6 1 1 8 Admin, MPOAC, PIP, N. Monroe

Thurs 04/25/24 8 8 MPOAC

Fri 04/26/24 8 8 MPOAC

Mon 04/29/24 3 1 4 8 Admin, Transplex prep, Starmetro, N. Monroe

Tues 04/30/24 2 1 1 2 2 8 Admin, RMP, PPLs, Starmetor, regional trails, N. Monroe

Wed 05/01/24 6 1 1 8 Personal leave, RMP, Starmetro

Thurs 05/02/24 7 1 8 Audit, personal leave,  RMP

Fri 05/03/24 6 2 8 Personal leave, N. Monroe



EMP NAME:  Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 5/24/24

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 5/6/24 5/17/24

DEPT: 460101

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE

Mon 5/6/24
Tues 5/7/24
Wed 5/8/24
Thurs 5/9/24

Fri 5/10/24

Mon 5/13/24
Tues 5/14/24
Wed 5/15/24
Thurs 5/16/24

Fri 5/17/24

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the 
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period 
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

May 17, 2024
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET



CRTPA TASK SHEET 

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 05/24/24
Payroll Range 05/06/24 thru 05/17/24

Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special

Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity

Mon 05/06/24 7 1 8 Admin, TransPlex, Functional Classification

Tues 05/07/24 8 8 TransPlex 

Wed 05/08/24 8 8 TransPlex 

Thurs 05/09/24 8 8 TransPlex 

Fri 05/10/24 8 8 Admin (Storm)

Mon 05/13/24 1 1 2 2 2 8 Admin, safety data, Smoothed Boundary, N. Monroe

Tues 05/14/24 3 2 2 1 8 Admin, staff meeting, ITS, Utah group, N. Monroe

Wed 05/15/24 2 3 1 1 1 8 Admin, safety data, J. Porter Briefing, PIP, N Monroe

Thurs 05/16/24 3 3 1 1 8 Admin, audit, safety data, RMP, PIP

Fri 05/17/24 3 2 2 1 8 Admin, audit, RMP, PPLs



EMP NAME:  Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 6/7/24

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 5/20/24 5/31/24

DEPT: 460101

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE

Mon 5/20/24 8 - Holiday
Tues 5/21/24
Wed 5/22/24
Thurs 5/23/24

Fri 5/24/24

Mon 5/27/24 8 - Holiday
Tues 5/28/24
Wed 5/29/24
Thurs 5/30/24

Fri 5/31/24

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the 
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period 
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET

5-31-2024



CRTPA TASK SHEET 

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 06/07/24
Payroll Range 05/20/24 thru 05/31/24

Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special

Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity

Mon 05/20/24 8 8 Holiday

Tues 05/21/24 4 2 2 8 Board meeting, staff meeting, TIP/PPLs, Utah

Wed 05/22/24 8 8 Utah Delegation - SunTrails

Thurs 05/23/24 8 8 Utah Delegation - SunTrails

Fri 05/24/24 2 1 3 2 8 Admin, safety data, Smoothed UA boundaries, 

Mon 05/27/24 8 8 Holiday

Tues 05/28/24 2 2 2 1 1 8 Admin, Census, Smoothed Boundaries, PPLs, SS4A

Wed 05/29/24 2 4 2 8 Admin, FDOT Qrtly, Smoothed boundaries, 

Thurs 05/30/24 8 8 Admin, Audit, Federal Planning Findings meeting

Fri 05/31/24 2 2 2 1 1 8 Admin, Audit, RMP, TIP/PPLs, regional trails, N. Monroe



EMP NAME:   Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 6/21/24

EMP #   14156 DATE RANGE: 6/3/24 6/14/24

DEPT: 460101

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE

Mon 6/3/24
Tues 6/4/24
Wed 6/5/24
Thurs 6/6/24

Fri 6/7/24

Mon 6/10/24
Tues 6/11/24
Wed 6/12/24
Thurs 6/13/24

Fri 6/14/24

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the 
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period 
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

June 14, 2024
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET



CRTPA TASK SHEET 

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 06/21/24
Payroll Range 06/03/24 thru 06/14/24

Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special

Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity

Mon 06/03/24 3 1 1 2 1 8 Admin, MPOAC, staff meeting, RMP,Resurfacing, PPLs

Tues 06/04/24 4 1 3 8 Admin, CMAC, Smoothed boundaries, PPL Public meeting (Wakulla)

Wed 06/05/24 2 2 2 1 1 8 Admin, RMP, Functional Classification, PPLs, 

Thurs 06/06/24 1 1 5 1 8 Safety data, Census data, PPLs

Fri 06/07/24 2 4 2 8 Admin, Walker-Ford helmet fitting, PPLs

Mon 06/10/24 2 1 3 2 8 Admin, audit, PPLs, City/County Bike Working group

Tues 06/11/24 2 2 2 2 8 Admin, Candidate Briefing - Montilla, RMP, TIP/PPLs, regional trails

Wed 06/12/24 3 2 2 1 8 Admin, audit, Briefing - Minor, Census data, TIP/PPLs, ITS

Thurs 06/13/24 8 8 MPOAC P&T (Orlando)

Fri 06/14/24 8 8 Admin, MPOAC P&T



EMP NAME:  Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 7/5/24

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 6/17/24 6/28/24

DEPT: 460101

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE

Mon 6/17/24
Tues 6/18/24
Wed 6/19/24
Thurs 6/20/24

Fri 6/21/24

Mon 6/24/24
Tues 6/25/24
Wed 6/26/24
Thurs 6/27/24 2

Fri 6/28/24

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the 
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period 
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

June 28, 2024
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET



CRTPA TASK SHEET 

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 07/05/24
Payroll Range 06/17/24 thru 06/28/24

Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special

Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity

Mon 06/17/24 6 1 1 8 Admin, staff meetnigs, Board meeting, safety data, regional trails

Tues 06/18/24 4 1 1 1 1 8 Admin, audit, KC trip prep, RMP, ITS, N. Monroe

Wed 06/19/24 4 2 1 1 8 Admin, budget, file management, smoothed boundaries, function class, regional trails

Thurs 06/20/24 3 1 1 1 2 8 Bylaws, file management, safety data, RMP, PPLs, ITS

Fri 06/21/24 2 1 1 1 2 1 8 File management, safety data, legislative review, regional trails

Mon 06/24/24 3 1 2 2 8 Admin, file management, ITS, SS4A

Tues 06/25/24 2 1 1 1 3 8 Admin, U-SDK, PPLs, regional trails SS4A

Wed 06/26/24 2 2 1 3 8 Admin, audit, crash data, SS4A

Thurs 06/27/24 2 2 1 1 2 8 Personal leave, functional calssification, website, SS4A

Fri 06/28/24 4 4 8 File management, crash data, U-SDK



September 16, 2024 

                       AGENDA ITEM 4 D 

CRTPA ATTORNEY CONTRACT 

TYPE OF ITEM: Action 

STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

This item seeks approval of a proposed one-year extension of the CRTPA’s legal contract. It was 
initially scheduled for discussion on the CRTPA’s June 17 agenda (see Attachment 1) but was removed 
from the meeting’s agenda with a notation that it would be brought back at a later date. 

Subsequent to the June Board meeting, the draft contract (Attachment 2) has been updated to reflect 
changes including changes related to compensation.  

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTION 

The CRTPA Executive Committee met on September 5 and voted to approve the contract’s extension. 

OPTIONS 

Option 1:   Approve an extension to the legal services agreement with the Williams Law Group, 
P.A.  
(Recommended) 

Option 2:  Provide other direction. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1 –June 2024 Agenda Item 
Attachment 2 – Draft Professional Services Agreement 



June 17, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 4B 

CRTPA ATTORNEY CONTRACT

TYPE OF ITEM: Consent 

STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

This item seeks a one-year extension of the CRTPA’s legal contract with the Williams Law Group, P.A. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 

The agreement for legal services with the Williams Law Group, P.A. was executed in September of 
2021 and most recently amended in September 2023. The initial contract with the Williams Law 
Group, P.A. was for a two-year term and includes an option to extend the agreement for one year. 
The contract extended in September 2023 making the current contract expiration date of September 
2024. 

Pursuant to Section 6 of the agreement, the contract may be amended from time to time and “the 
three years under this Agreement shall be for a two-year term with one, one year option to extend 
and further provided that funding approval by the CRTPA Board is obtained prior to renewal.”   

The proposed extension would expire in September 2025. 

OPTIONS 

Option 1:   Approve an extension to the legal services agreement with the Williams Law Group, 
P.A.  
(Recommended) 

Option 2:  Provide other direction. 

ATTACHMENT 

Attachment 1:  Legal Services Agreement with the Williams Law Group, P.A., (with the 
 proposed contract extension included on last page) 

ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1
Contract No 2021 - 01



Formal presentations at CRTPA Board meetings wi II be by either the Primary Attorney or a 

Secondary Attorney, at the discretion of the Primary Attorney, unless the Director requests 

otherwise. The Primary or Secondary Attorneys will provide advice on routine CRTPA 

issues. 

(b) Follow up Activities. The Law Firm will perform follow up activities, as a result of matters

addressed or considered during CRTPA meetings or the pre-briefing, at the request of the Director or

the Board Chairman. Either the Prima1y Attorney, Seconda,y Attorneys, or other attorneys within the

Law Firn1 may perform these follow up activities, unless the Director requests otherwise.

(c) Preparation of Presentations to CRTPA Board. The Law Finn will prepare

presentations to the CRTPA Board at CRTPA meetings at the request of the Director or the

Board Chainnan. The Primary Attorney, Secondary Attorneys, or other attorneys within the

Law Finn may prepare these presentations, at the discretion of the Primary Attorney, unless

the Director requests otherwise.

(d) Legal Opinions. The Law Fi1m will provide legal opinions at the request of the Director, the

Chairman or the Board. Legal opinions will be provided in a summarized written fo 1mat

suitable for either a presentation to the CRTPA, incorporating into the CRTPA Agenda or

policy items. The Primary Attorney, Secondary Attorneys, or other attorneys within the Law

Finn may perfonn research and writing, at the discretion of the Primary Attorney. unless the

Director requests otherwise; however, presentations at CRTPA meetings will be in

accordance with (c), above. The Law Firm will provide an opinion letter in response to the

annual auditor's request for a description of all material pending and threatened litigation,

claims and assessments against CRTPA and related matters. As the Law Finn's practice

areas do not include Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, no opinion will be

2 





requested legal services in a timely and satisfactory manner. The Primary Attorney, Secondary 

Attorneys or other attorneys within the Law Firm may perfonn these services, at the discretion of the 

Primary Attorney, unless the Director requests otherwise; however, presentations at CRTPA meetings 

will be in accordance with (c), above. 

2. Compensation,

(a) The Law Firm shall be compensated for professional fees with a monthly retainer as

follows: 

1) For the first year, in the amount of$14,100.00, (billed at 1,175.00, per month), and a rate

of $300.00 per hour for 3.9 hours per month for services rendered to the CRT PA as

listed in paragraphs I (a) above.

2) For the second year, in the amount of $16,000.00 (billed at 1,333.33, per month) and a

rate of $3 15 .00 per hour for 4.23 hours, per month for services rendered to the CR TPA

as listed in paragraphs I (a) above.

3) For the third year, in the amount of $17, I 00.00, per year (billed at $1,425.00 per month)_

and a rate of $325.00 per hour for 4.3 hours, per month for services rendered to the

CRTPA as listed in paragraphs I (a) above.

4) The Law Firm will perform such services in excess of the monthly allocation hours upon

conferring with and receiving written approval from the Executive Director to do so, and

be compensated therefore at the hourly rate in paragraph 2(a) above. Should the Law

Firm propose that additional compensation should be provided for such work, it will

present its proposal and justification to the Director, who will have discretion to

approve or disapprove such additional compensation based on CRTPA Board direction

as provided for herein. All approvals for additional compensation will be made in

writing.

4 



5) The Law Firm shall be compensated at the billing rate per hour, as outlined herein, for

services rendered to the CRTPA as listed in paragraphs l(b)-(h) above, and for all

authorized services rendered as listed in paragraphs l(a) above, that exceed the budgeted

allocated hours in any one month.

6) The Law Finn shall be compensated for all out of pocket expenses and other charges

incurred in providing services under this Agreement.

7) On or before the 15th day of each consecutive month during the term of this agreement,

the Law Finn shall prepare and submit an invoice for such fees. costs, and expense

incurred in providing services doing the preceding month. Invoices will include the

name of the attorney performing the work, a description of the work performed, hours

expended during the billing period, cumulative hours on the specific task, the amount

currently billed, and any prior due balances. Invoices shall be submitted to the Director,

via e-mail, as designated by the Director. Invoices shall also provide detail as to

specific and cumulative time expended, disbursements made, payments made to any

certified DBE fim1s and other expenses incurred as may be required by the Director.

Semi-annually, the Law Firm shall provide written documentation, which identifies the

progress made toward the CRTPA's DBE goal of 8.5% participation.

3. Maintenance of Professional Standards and Malpractice Insurance,

The Law Firm shall maintain familiarity with the Code of Professional Responsibility of the

Florida Bar and shall ensure that its representation shall be in compliance with the standards of

conduct set by those rules. In the event of any questions concerning any potential conflict of

interest between the CRTPA and any other client represented by the Law Firm, the same shall

be disclosed to the Director immediately upon the issue being raised. The Director will

develop a recommendation as to the conflict to present to the CR TP A Board for its

5 



consideration. 

4. Insurance.

The Law Finn shall obtain and maintain malpractice insurance and shall provide documentation of

same.

5. Primary and Secondary Attorneys Professional Services Responsibility.

The legal services under this Agreement shall be provided by Thornton Williams, Esquire, as 

Primary Attorney, and Harriet Williams, Esquire, as a Secondary Attorney under this Agreement. 

and other attorneys within the Law Firm, when necessary, as described in paragraph I, above. 

6. Term of Agreement,

This Agreement is for an term of three (3) years from the date first above stated, but may be amended 

from time to time, in writing, by mutual agreement of the parties. This Agreement may be unilaterally 

terminated for convenience by either party upon the providing of 30 days written notice to the other 

party. The three years under this Agreement shall be for a two year term with one, one year option to 

extend and further provided that funding approval by the CRTPA Board is obtained prior to renewal. 

7. Assignment.

This Contract shall not be assigned or sublet as a whole or in part without the written consent of

the CRTP A nor shall the Law Firm assign any monies due or to become due to him hereunder

without the previous written consent of the CRTPA.

8. Indemnification.

The Law Firm agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the CRTP A from all claims, damages,

I iabilities, or suits of any nature whatsoever arising out of, because ot� or due to the breach of this

agreement by the Law Finn, its delegates, agents or employees, or due to any act or occurrence

of omission or commission of the Law Firm, including but not limited to costs and a reasonable

6 





RENEWAL OPTION

The Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency hereby elects to extend 
this Professional Services Agreement for the Agency's legal services 
pursuant to Section 6. of this Agreement with the Williams Law Group, P.A.

June 17, 2024

Quincee Messersmith, Chair CRTPA_________________________________ 

Date:______________________

Thornton Williams _________________________________________ 
Williams Law Group, P.A.

Date:_______________________________





1 

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

             THIS AGREEMENT for Professional Legal Services is entered into this __________ day 

of ___________________, 2021, by and between the Capital Region Transportation Planning 

Agency, (”CRTPA") and the law firm of Williams Law Group, P.A. ("Law Firm”) shall 

become effective on the date entered above. 

WHEREAS, the CRTPA is a metropolitan planning organization designated pursuant 

to Section 339.175, Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the CRTPA wishes to obtain the services of the Law Firm for the 

purpose of assisting the CRTPA in legal matters as referenced below in the Scope of 

Services; and 

WHEREAS, the Law Firm wishes to render the legal services as required by the 

CRTPA as set forth in the Scope of Services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration and the mutual promises between 

the parties hereto, it is agreed as follows: 

1. Scope of Services.  The Law Firm shall perform the following services:

(a) Routine CRTPA Meetings, Telephonic Consultation and Advice.  The Primary or Secondary

attorneys, as set forth herein, will provide routine telephonic legal consultation with CRTPA Board

members, the CRTPA’s Executive Director (hereinafter referred to as "the Director") and the

CRTPA Staff.  The Primary Attorney will attend all CRTPA Board meetings, including the Board's

semi-annual retreat, and pre-briefings as requested by the CRTPA Board Chairman or the Director,

except when unforeseen situations arise outside the control of the Primary Attorney, in which case a

Secondary Attorney may attend.

ATTACHMENT 2



2 

Formal presentations at CRTPA Board meetings will be by either the Primary Attorney or a 

Secondary Attorney, at the discretion of the Primary Attorney, unless the Director requests 

otherwise.  The Primary or Secondary Attorneys will provide advice on routine CRTPA 

issues. 

(b) Follow up Activities.  The Law Firm will perform follow up activities, as a result of matters

addressed or considered during CRTPA meetings or the pre-briefing, at the request of the Director or

the Board Chairman.  Either the Primary Attorney, Secondary Attorneys, or other attorneys within the

Law Firm may perform these follow up activities, unless the Director requests otherwise.

(c) Preparation of Presentations to CRTPA Board.  The Law Firm will prepare

presentations to the CRTPA Board at CRTPA meetings at the request of the Director or the

Board Chairman.  The Primary Attorney, Secondary Attorneys, or other attorneys within the

Law Firm may prepare these presentations, at the discretion of the Primary Attorney, unless

the Director requests otherwise.

(d) Legal Opinions.  The Law Firm will provide legal opinions at the request of the Director, the

Chairman or the Board.  Legal opinions will be provided in a summarized written format

suitable for either a presentation to the CRTPA, incorporating into the CRTPA Agenda or

policy items.  The Primary Attorney, Secondary Attorneys, or other attorneys within the Law

Firm may perform research and writing, at the discretion of the Primary Attorney, unless the

Director requests otherwise; however, presentations at CRTPA meetings will be in

accordance with (c), above.  The Law Firm will provide an opinion letter in response to the

annual auditor's request for a description of all material pending and threatened litigation,

claims and assessments against CRTPA and related matters.  As the Law Firm's practice

areas do not include Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, no opinion will be



3 

provided by the Law Firm in relation to the disclosure requirements of Statement of Financial 

Accounting Standards No. 5. 

(e) CRTPA Policy Development. The Law Firm will participate in the development and revisions of

CRTPA policy, procedures, bylaws, and governing documents, at the request of the Director.  The

Primary Attorney, Secondary Attorneys or other attorneys within the Law Firm may attend

meetings and perform research, writing, and related work, at the discretion of the Primary

Attorney, unless the Director requests otherwise; however, presentations at CRTPA meetings will

be in accordance with (c), above.

(f) Litigation.  The Law Firm will provide litigation support to the CRTPA at the request and with

the authorization of the Board Chairman or the Director.  Either the Primary Attorney, the

Secondary Attorneys or other attorneys within the Law Firm may provide these services, at the

discretion of the Primary Attorney.

(g) CRTPA Contracts. The Law Firm will participate in the preparation of contracts, contract

negotiations, settlements, changes, and the initial evaluation of protests at the request of the

Director in conjunction with the City or County procurement offices, as needed.  The Primary

Attorney, Secondary Attorneys or other attorneys within the Law Firm may attend meetings,

perform evaluations and research and writing, at the discretion of the Primary Attorney, unless the

Director requests otherwise; however, presentations at CRTPA meetings will be in accordance

with (c), above.

(h) Other Services.   The Law Firm shall render such other legal professional services as may on

occasion be specifically requested by the CRTPA and duly authorized in writing by the Director or

the Board Chairman.  The Director or his designee shall be the coordinator for all CRTPA requests for

legal services from the Law Firm and shall be responsible for ensuring the Law Firm provides the



4 

requested legal services in a timely and satisfactory manner.  The Primary Attorney, Secondary 

Attorneys or other attorneys within the Law Firm may perform these services, at the discretion of the 

Primary Attorney, unless the Director requests otherwise; however, presentations at CRTPA meetings 

will be in accordance with (c), above. 

2. Compensation.

(a) The Law Firm shall be compensated for professional fees with a monthly retainer as

follows: 

1) In the amount of $18,060.00 per year (billed at $1,505.00 per month) and a rate of

$350.00 per hour for 4.3 hours, per month for services rendered to the CRTPA as listed

in paragraphs l (a) above.

2) The Law Firm will perform such services in excess of the monthly allocation hours upon

conferring with and receiving written approval from the Executive Director to do so and

be compensated therefore at the hourly rate in paragraph 1, above.  Should the Law Firm

propose that additional compensation should be provided for such work, it will present

its proposal and justification to the Director, who will have discretion to

approve or disapprove such additional compensation based on CRTPA Board direction

as provided for herein.  All approvals for additional compensation will be made in

writing.

3) The Law Firm shall be compensated at the billing rate per hour, as outlined herein, for

services rendered to the CRTPA as listed in paragraphs l(b)-(h) above, and for all

authorized services rendered as listed in paragraphs 1(a) above, that exceed the budgeted

allocated hours in any one month.

4) The Law Firm shall be compensated for all out-of-pocket expenses and other charges

incurred in providing services under this Agreement.



5 

5) On or before the 15th day of each consecutive month during the term of this agreement,

the Law Firm shall prepare and submit an invoice for such fees, costs, and expense

incurred in providing services doing the preceding month.  Invoices will include the

name of the attorney performing the work, a description of the work performed, hours

expended during the billing period, cumulative hours on the specific task, the amount

currently billed, and any prior due balances.  Invoices shall be submitted to the Director,

via e-mail, as designated by the Director.  Invoices shall also provide details as to

specific and cumulative time expended, disbursements made, payments made to any

certified DBE firms and other expenses incurred as may be required by the Director.

Semi-annually, the Law Firm shall provide written documentation, which identifies the

progress made toward the CRTPA's DBE goal of 8.5% participation.

3. Maintenance of Professional Standards and Malpractice Insurance.

The Law Firm shall maintain familiarity with the Code of Professional Responsibility of the

Florida Bar and shall ensure that its representation shall be in compliance with the standards of

conduct set by those rules.  In the event of any questions concerning any potential conflict of

interest between the CRTPA and any other client represented by the Law Firm, the same shall

be disclosed to the Director immediately upon the issue being raised.  The Director will

develop a recommendation as to the conflict to present to the CRTPA Board for its

consideration.

4. Insurance.

The Law Firm shall obtain and maintain malpractice insurance and shall provide documentation of

same.



6 

5. Primary and Secondary Attorneys Professional Services Responsibility.

The legal services under this Agreement shall be provided by Thornton Williams, Esquire, as 

Primary Attorney, and Harriet Williams, Esquire, as a Secondary Attorney under this Agreement, 

and other attorneys within the Law Firm, when necessary, as described in paragraph 1, above. 

6. Term of Agreement.

This Agreement is for a term of three (3) years from the date first above stated, but may be amended

from time to time, in writing, by mutual agreement of the parties.  This Agreement may be unilaterally

terminated for convenience by either party upon the providing of 30 days written notice to the other

party.  The three years under this Agreement shall be for a two-year term with one, one year option to

extend and further provided that funding approval by the CRTPA Board is obtained prior to renewal.

7. Assignment.

This Contract shall not be assigned or sublet as a whole or in part without the written consent of

the CRTPA nor shall the Law Firm assign any monies due or to become due to him hereunder

without the previous written consent of the CRTPA.

8. Indemnification.

The Law Firm agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the CRTPA from all claims, damages,

liabilities, or suits of any nature whatsoever arising out of, because of, or due to the breach of this

agreement by the Law Firm, its delegates, agents or employees, or due to any act or occurrence

of omission or commission of the Law Firm, including but not limited to costs and a reasonable

attorney's fee.

9. Audits, Records and Records Retention.

The Law Firm agrees:



7 

(a) To establish and maintain books, records, and documents (including electronic

storage media) in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures and practices, 

which sufficiently and accurately reflect all revenues and expenditures of funds provided by 

the CRTPA under this contract. 

(b) To retain all client records, financial records, supporting documents, statistical

records, and any other documents (including electronic storage media) pertinent to this 

contract for a period of three (3) years after termination of the contract, or if an audit has 

been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at the end of three (3) years, the 

records shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings or any litigation which may be 

based on the terms of this contract. 

(c) Upon completion or termination of the contract and at the request of the CRTPA,

the Law Firm will cooperate with the CRTPA to facilitate the duplication and transfer of any 

said records or documents during the required retention period as specified in paragraph 1 

above. 

(d) To assure that these records shall be subject at all reasonable times to

inspection, review, or audit by Federal, state, or other personnel duly authorized by the 

CRTPA. 

(e) Persons duly authorized by the CRTPA and Federal auditors, pursuant to 45

CFR, Part 92.36(1)(10), shall have full access to and the right to examine any of provider's 

contract and related records and documents, regardless of the form in which kept, at all 

reasonable times for as long as records are retained. 

(f) To include these aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all

approved subcontracts and assignments. 



8 

     AGREED TO the date first above stated, 

 ____________________________________________________  _____________________________________ 
Quincee Messersmith, Chair By: Thornton Williams  
CAPITAL REGION TRANSPORTATION               800 N. Calhoun Street  
PLANNING AGENCY             Suite 1B               
300 S. Adams Street, A-1 Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Tallahassee, Florida 32303 



          RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency ("CRTPA") 

authorizing the execution of a contract between the CRTPA and the Williams Law Group, 

P.A. 

WHEREAS, the CRTPA wishes to contract for legal service; and 

WHEREAS, the CRTPA has completed negotiations the Williams Law Group, P.A. for 

legal services; and 

WHEREAS, the CRTPA has found that the Williams Law Group, P.A. is the qualified to 

preform legal services for CRTPA, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CRTPA THAT: 

1. The CRTPA has the authority to enter into a contract for legal services.

2. The CRTPA has an approved the scope of services and fees.

3. The CRTPA has funding within its annual budget for the legal services.

4. The CRTPA authorizes the Chair to execute and Executive Director to

administer a contract with the Williams Law Group, P.A. for legal services.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _________DAY OF __________ 2024 

Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency 

________________________________ 
By:     , Chair 



September 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 6 A 

FLORIDA TRANSPORTATION PLAN (FTP) UPDATE 

TYPE OF ITEM: Action 

STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

The Florida Department of Transportation will provide an update on the development of the 2055 
FTP. 

ATTACHMENT 

Attachment 1 – Draft Presentation 



2055 Florida Transportation Plan

September 16, 2024

Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency Board Meeting

ATTACHMENT 1



2055 Florida Transportation Plan Update

2

SINGLE, OVERARCHING PLAN

GUIDES FLORIDA’S TRANSPORTATION FUTURE

FOUNDATION FOR FLORIDA’S WORK PROGRAM

UPDATED EVERY 5 YEARS

COLLABORATIVE EFFORT WITH PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PARTNERS



2055 FTP Approach

3

30-year plan

Streamlined 
Steering 

Committee 
Uses plain 

language and 
concepts

Connects to 
communities, 
policies, and 

programs

Regional 
approach



Statewide and Regional Trends

4

Northwest
Northeast

Central

Southwest
Southeast

The FTP will recognize the uniqueness of Florida’s regions
The 2055 FTP will include statewide goals and regional objectives, empowering our communities to 
adopt unique local strategies that align with the FTP

Miami

Orlando

Tampa

JacksonvilleTallahassee

Fort 
Myers



Statewide and Regional Collaboration 

5



Building our Transportation Future Together

66 6

The FTP guides our transportation 
future, but it is not a list of projects



Opportunities for Engagement

7

Steering Committee

Focus Groups

Statewide Webinars

Regional Workshops + 
Virtual Open Houses

16 key partners and stakeholders 
who provide input and

guide the 2055 FTP

5 Focus Groups will provide input 
to the Steering Committee at key 

milestones
Safety, Resilient Infrastructure, Economic 

Development/Supply Chain, Technology, & 
Workforce Development

Community webinars structured 
to receive public and partner 

feedback

In-person and online open 
houses structured to receive 
regionally-focused public and 

partner feedback



20
24

20
24

Se
pt

M
ar

Se
ptO

ct

Ju
ly

M
ayFe

b

20
24

20
25

Ap
ril

M
ay

Au
g

D
ec

Ap
ril

Ju
ne Ju

ly Au
g

N
ov D

ec

Ja
nN

ov O
ct

Visioning Goals & Objectives Implementation Framework/Plan Development

Regional Visioning 
Sessions

Steering 
Committee

Steering 
Committee

Steering 
Committee

Steering 
Committee

Steering 
Committee

Focus 
Groups Focus 

Groups Focus 
Groups

Focus 
Groups

Regional Workshops + 
Virtual Open House

Statewide 
Webinar + Virtual 

Open House

Regional Workshops + 
Virtual Open House

Partner Engagement

Local/Regional Outreach

Public 
Comment

Optional
Focus Groups

Final 
Adoption

Statewide 
Webinar

Steering 
Committee

8



9

Get Engaged Today!

Scan to 
learn more!



September 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 6 B 

FISCAL YEAR 2023 CRTPA ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

TYPE OF ITEM: Action 

STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

The purpose of this item is to discuss the CRTPA Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Annual Financial Statements 
developed for the period October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023.   

HISTORY

Annually the CRTPA performs a financial audit as required by the executed grant agreements with the 
Florida Department of Transportation.  The CRTPA contracts with James Moore and Company for 
auditing services. Audit representatives from James Moore present the Financial Statements yearly to 
the Executive Committee and to the CRTPA Board. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

CRTPA staff and auditors from James Moore and Company presented the FY 2023 Audit findings at 
the September 5, 2024 Executive Committee meeting. The Committee approved acceptance of 
the FY 2023 Annual Financial Statements.   

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 

The Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency’s management is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with US Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles. Additionally, the CRTPA must comply with federal and state laws and regulations, 
provisions of grant agreements, and accounting and reporting requirements associated with such 
grants. Auditors with James Moore and Company prepared the CRTPA FY 2023 Annual Financial 
Statements which is provided as Attachment 1. 

The audit was conducted in accordance with the attestation standards by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that the Auditor plan and perform the 
examination to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the agency complied with the 
requirements of Section 215.97 Florida Statutes (Florida Single Audit Act) and applicable requirements 
of Code of Federal Regulations, 2 CFR 200 for the year ending September 30, 2023. 



Agenda Item 6B – CRTPA FY 2023 Annual Financial Statements  
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024  PAGE 2 
 
 
 
Summary of Auditor’s Results  
 
Part of the Audit is an assessment of the CRTPA’s financial condition and management. The Auditor 
applied appropriate procedures to conduct this assessment. Last year the Auditors recommended 
management regularly review grant revenue and expense and agree these amounts in the trial 
balance and on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The 2023 audit report indicates that 
the corrective action taken satisfactorily addresses the recommendation made in the preceding 
financial audit report. 
  
The CRTPA FY 2023 audit did not identify any material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in the 
CRTPA’s “Internal Control over Financial Reporting” or in the “Internal Control over Major Programs.” 
The audit was submitted timely to the Federal Clearinghouse and the Florida Department of 
Transportation. The absence of material weaknesses or deficiencies categorizes the CRTPA as a low- 
risk auditee, for the fifth consecutive year. 
 
OPTIONS 
 

Option 1:  Recommend the CRTPA accept the FY 2023 Annual Financial Statements. 
 

       Option 2:   CRTPA Board Discretion. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1:  FY 2023 CRTPA Annual Financial Statements 
 
 
 



������� ������ �������������� 

�������� ������ 

������ ��������� ���������� 

��� ��� ������ ���� ����� 

 ��������� ��� ���� 

�������� ��� 

��������� �������� ���������� 

��������� ��������� �������� 

���� �� ������������ ������� 

ATTACHMENT 1



��Õ¯ã�¼�Y�©¯ÈÂ�dØ�ÂÜÕÈØã�ã¯ÈÂ�V¼�ÂÂ¯Â©�

�©�Â�ö�

(¯Ü��¼�y��Ø��Â����]�Õã�Á��Ø�ɹɶʍ�ɸɶɸɹ�ô¯ã�

0Â��Õ�Â��Âã��ç�¯ãÈØÜʭ�Y�ÕÈØã�



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Contents
I. Financial Section

Independent Auditors’ Report .........................................................................................4
Management’s Discussion and Analysis..........................................................................7

Basic Financial Statements 
Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position ..............................................................................................14
Statement of Activities ...................................................................................................15

Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet, Governmental Funds ............................................................................16
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net 
Position .........................................................................................................................17
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental 
Funds…………………………………………………………………………………………….18
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ....................................19

Notes to the Financial Statements
Note I – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.....................................................21
Note II – Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability .................................................25
Note III – Detail Notes – All Funds.................................................................................25
Note IV – Other Information...........................................................................................26

II. Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule ..................................................................................38
Note to Budgetary Comparison Schedule .....................................................................39
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) .....................................................40
Schedule of Contributions – City of Tallahassee Pension Plan......................................41
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios..............................42
Schedule of Contributions-OPEB...................................................................................43

III. Other Reports
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards .........................................................45
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the 
Uniform Guidance .........................................................................................................47
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ................................................................50
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .................................................................51
Independent Accountants’ Examination Report .............................................................52
Independent Auditors’ Management Letter Required by Office of the Auditor General ..53 

1



This page intentionally left blank.

2



FINANCIAL SECTION

THIS SECTION CONTAINS THE FOLLOWING SUBSECTIONS:

Independent Auditors' Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

3



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Governing Board
of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major 
fund of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency (the Agency), as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Agency, as of 
September 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards (GAS), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Agency’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

4



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and GAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and GAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s 
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

5



Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards as 
required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance), is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and is derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 10, 2024 
on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance.  

Tallahassee, Florida 
June 10, 2024 

6



CAPITAL REGION TRANSPORTATION AGENCY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency (CRTPA), we offer readers of CRTPA's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of CRTPA's financial activities for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2023. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
CRTPA's financial statements which are presented in thousands. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of $1,827,000 increased by $463,000 from the prior

year primarily due to the net increase in pension and OPEB related balances and an increase in

due from other governments. Total liabilities and deferred inflows of $2,052,000 increased by

$422,000 primarily related to changes in pension and OPEB related balances and an increase in

due to other governments. When applicable, negative cash balance gets reclassified to due to other

governments since the City is effectively temporarily loaning the cash to cover the Agency's

expenses.

 Net position increased by $41,000 during the fiscal year due to current year operations.

 Revenues of $1,573,000, primarily operating grants, were received during the fiscal year, as

compared to $1,150,000 in prior year. Expenses of $1,532,000, primarily personnel expenses and

contractual services, were incurred during the fiscal year, as compared to $1,151,000 in the prior

year.

An Overview of the Financial Statements

Required Components of CRTPA's Annual Financial Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide
Financial Statements

Fund
Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

7



The focus of the financial statements is on both CRTPA's overall financial status and the major individual funds. The
following briefly describes the component parts.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements are designed to report information about CRTPA as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position combines all
of CRTPA’s current financial resources with capital assets and long-term obligations. Net position, the difference
between CRTPA’s assets and liabilities, is one way to measure its financial health.

CRTPA is considered a single-function government with all activities classified as governmental rather than
business-type. Consequently, the government-wide financial statements include only governmental activities. These
are services that are financed primarily from Federal and State grants and contributions from member governments.
Business-type activities by definition include services for which specific fees are charged, which are meant to cover
the cost of providing those services.  The CRTPA does not have these types of activities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. All of CRTPA’s funds are considered to be governmental funds. CRTPA
maintains a general fund and a special revenue fund; both of which are considered major funds. The following chart
describes the fund requirements:

Scope Includes CRTPA's revenues, which are primarily from operating grants

Required financial statements Balance Sheet
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Accounting basis and
Measurement focus

Modified accrual accounting and current financial
resources focus

Type of asset / liability
information

Only assets expected to be used up and liabilities that come due during
the year or soon thereafter, no capital assets are included

Type of inflow / outflow
information

Revenues for which cash is received during or soon after the end of
the year; expenditures when goods or services have been received
and payment is due during the year or soon thereafter

8



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position compared to the prior year. CRTPA’s net
position increased by $41,000 in fiscal year 2023. Total assets decreased by $26,000 and total liabilities increased
by  $589,000.

Table 1
Statement of Net Position

As of September 30
Governmental Activities

(in thousands)

2023 2022 $ Change

Assets
Due From Other Governments $ 914 $ 608 $ 306

Net Pension Asset - 332 (332)

Total assets 914 940 (26)

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension related deferred outflows 827 328 499
OPEB related deferred outflows 86 96 (10)

Total deferred outflows 913 424 489

Total assets and deferred outflows 1,827 1,364 463

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 48 54 (6)
Due to other governments 709 425 284
Compensated absences 57 53 4

Total current liabilities 814 532 282

Noncurrent liabilities
Net OPEB obligation 190 240 (50)
Net pension liability 362 - 362
Compensated absences 27 32 (5)

Total noncurrent liabilities 579 272 307

Total liabilities 1,393 804 589

Deferred inflows of resources
Pension related deferred inflows 572 775 (203)
OPEB related deferred inflows 87 51 36

Total deferred inflows 659 826 (167)

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 2,052 1,630 422

Net position
Unrestricted (225) (266) 41

Total net position (225) (266) 41

Liabilities, deferred inflows and net position $ 1,827 $ 1,364 $ 463

9



CHANGES IN NET POSITION

In 2023, CRTPA’s total revenues were $1,573,000 and expenses were $1,532,000, resulting in an increase in net
position of $41,000. Revenues consisted primarily of operating grants and contributions; expenses consisted
primarily of personnel costs and contractual services. The following table shows comparative revenues and
expenses by sources and programs and the resulting change in net position:

 Table 2
Statement of Activities

For the year ended September 30
Governmental Activities

(in thousands)

2023 2022 $ Change

Program revenues
Operating grants and contributions

Operating grants and contributions $ 1,573 $ 1,174 $ 399
Increase in FMV of investments 2 (25) 27
Miscellaneous - 1 (1)
Unrestricted Investment Earnings (2) - (2)

Total program revenues 1,573 1,150 423

Expenses
Transportation 1,532 1,151 381

Total expenses 1,532 1,151 381

Increase (Decrease) in net position $ 41 $ (1) $ 42

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table reflects the sources and uses and the resulting change in fund balances for each fund:

Table 3
Governmental Funds

Financial Analysis
(in thousands)

Fund

Fund
Balances
9/30/2022 Sources Uses

Sources Over
(Under) Uses

Fund
Balance

9/30/2023

General $ 119 $ 1,418 $ 1,413 $ 5 $ 124
Special revenue 8 158 134 24 32

Total $ 127 $ 1,576 $ 1,547 $ 29 $ 156

10



11



This page intentionally left blank.

12



    BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements provide a summary overview of the financial position as well as the operating
results of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency. They also serve as an introduction to the more
detailed statements and schedules that follow in subsequent sections:

Government-wide Financial Statements
 Fund Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

13



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2023
(in thousands)

Assets and deferred outflows of resources
Current assets:

Due from other governments $ 914
Deferred outflows of resources:

Pension related deferred outflows 827
Other post-employment benefits related deferred outflows 86

Total deferred outflows of resources 913

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 1,827

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 48
Due to other governments 709
Compensated absences 57

Total current liabilities 814

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net other post-employment benefits liability 190
Net pension liability 362
Compensated absences 27

Total noncurrent liabilities 579

Total liabilities 1,393

Deferred inflows of resources:
Pension related deferred inflows 572
OPEB related deferred inflows 87

Total deferred inflows of resources 659

Net position:
Unrestricted (225)

Total net position (225)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position $ 1,827

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

14



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Statement of Activities

Year ended September 30, 2023
(in thousands)

Program Revenues

Net
(Expenses)

Revenues and
Changes in
Net Position

Primary
Government

Function/Programs Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions
Governmental

Activities

Primary government:
Transportation $ 1,532 $ - $ 1,573 $ - $ 41

Total primary
government $ 1,532 $ - $ 1,573 $ - $ 41

General revenues:
Increase in fair value of investments $ 2
Unrestricted Investment Earnings (2)

Change in net position 41
Net position - October 1, 2022 (266)

Net position - September 30,  2023 $ (225)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

15



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
September 30, 2023

(in thousands)

General
Special

Revenue

Total
Governmental

Funds

Assets
Due from other governments $ 843 $ 71 $ 914

Total assets $ 843 $ 71 $ 914

Liabilities and fund balance
Accounts payable and accrued

expenses $ 48 $ 1 $ 49
Due to other governments 671 38 709

Total liabilities 719 39 758

Fund balance:
Committed 124 32 156

Total fund balance 124 32 156

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 843 $ 71 $ 914

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

16



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2023

(in thousands)

Total fund balance per the governmental fund financial statements $ 156

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Deferred outflows of resources related to the pension liability and the Net
OPEB liability are not receivable in the current period and are not reported
in the governmental funds. 913

OPEB liabilites are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds. (190)

Certain amounts related to the Net Pension Liability will not be paid in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (362)

Deferred inflows of resources related to the pension liability and the Net
OPEB liability are not due and payable in the current period and are not
reported in the governmental funds. (659)

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (84)

Other miscellaneous adjustments 1

Total net position per the government-wide statement of net position $ (225)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

17



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds

Year ended  September 30, 2023
(in thousands)

General
Special

Revenue

Total
Governmental

Funds

Revenues by source:
Intergovernmental:

Federal $ 1,425 $ 157 $ 1,582
CRTPA Members (10) - (10)

Miscellaneous Revenues 1 1 2
Increase in fair market value of

investments 2 - 2

Total revenues 1,418 158 1,576

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation:
Personnel services 730 - 730
Operating expenses 611 134 745
Administrative charges 72 - 72

Total expenditures 1,413 134 1,547

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures 5 24 29

Net change in fund balance 5 24 29

Fund balances - October 1, 2022 119 8 127

Fund balances - September 30, 2023 $ 124 $ 32 $ 156

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

18



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Year ended  September 30, 2023
(in thousands)

Net change in fund balance per the governmental fund financial
statements $ 29

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

The net change in compensated absences, which is reported in the
Statement of Activities, does not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in
governmental funds. 1

Pension related items reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds. 8

OPEB related items reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
an expenditure in the governmental funds. 4

Other miscellaneous adjustments. (1)

Change in net position per the government-wide Statement of Activities $ 41

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

19



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

NOTE II - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

NOTE III - Detail Notes - All Funds

NOTE IV - Other Information

20



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements of
the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency (CRTPA). These policies are considered essential and should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements. The accounting policies of the CRTPA conform to Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. This report, the accounting system of the
CRTPA, and the classification of accounts, conform to standards of the Governmental Accounting Standard Board
(GASB).

A. REPORTING ENTITY

In December 2004, the CRTPA was created through an interlocal agreement between the Florida Department of
Transportation; the Counties of Leon, Gadsden, and Wakulla; the Cities of Midway, Quincy, and Tallahassee; the Town of
Havana and the Leon County School Board as authorized by Section 163.01 Florida Statutes. CRTPA was established in
order for the members to participate cooperatively in the development of transportation related plans and programs.
Currently, the governing board consists of voting representatives from the Counties of Leon, Gadsden, Jefferson and
Wakulla; the Cities of Midway, Quincy, Tallahassee, Chattahoochee and Gretna; the Towns of Greensboro and Havana,
the Leon County School Board, and three nonvoting representatives from the Florida Department of Transportation, the
Federal Highway Administration, and StarMetro (City of Tallahassee Transit system). The CRTPA is not a component unit
of any of the entities listed or any other entity. In addition, the CRTPA has not identified any other entities for which the
CRTPA has operational or financial relationships that would require them to be included as component units of the
CRTPA.

On November 17, 2007, CRTPA members voted to expand the boundaries of the planning area to include all of Gadsden
County, Jefferson County, Leon County, and Wakulla County and to make the necessary changes to the Interlocal
Agreement to reflect this change. On January 12, 2009, CRTPA members approved the Apportionment Plan, which is the
initial step in recognizing new representatives from the expanded boundaries. CRTPA staff contacted each of the counties
and municipalities to obtain a formal resolution from each governing body stating they wished to participate as a member
of the CRTPA. An approved apportionment plan and all the resolutions obtained were sent to the Florida Department of
Transportation on August 12, 2010 for review and were approved by the Governor’s Office on March 17, 2011.

The CRTPA receives federal and state transportation planning funds for the performance of its transportation planning and
programming activities. If operating expenses exceed the external funding obtained, the deficit is funded by the members
of the CRTPA in proportion to their weighted votes.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements report information on all the activities of the CRTPA. The effect of interfund
activity has been eliminated from these government-wide statements. These statements include the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues are revenues that derive directly from the program itself or from parties outside the reporting
government’s taxpayers or citizenry. Program revenues reduce the net cost of the function to be financed from the
government’s other revenues. Program revenues in the current year primarily consisted of grant revenues from the US
Department of Transportation, passed through the Florida Department of Transportation.

Separate fund financial statements are also provided for the individual governmental funds of the CRTPA. The CRTPA
has no other types of funds. All funds are treated as major funds and are therefore presented in separate columns in the
fund financial statements. The fund financial statements include the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance.

21



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement
focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred.

When an expense or expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available, it is the CRTPA’s policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The CRTPA reports the following major governmental funds:

 The General Fund is the CRTPA’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the

CRTPA incuding federal operating grants and contributions from the CRTPA members.

 The Special Revenue Fund accounts for federal grants, state grants and local revenues which are to be

used for particular functions of the CRTPA and are not to be diverted to other uses.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION / DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/INVESTMENTS - CRTPA considers cash on hand, demand deposits, liquid
investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less, and balances included within the City of Tallahassee’s (City) cash
and investments pool to be cash and cash equivalents. The City’s cash and investments pool is an internal cash
management pool used to obtain efficiencies of operation and improved financial performance, and includes certain non-
pension cash, cash equivalent, and investment securities. CRTPA maintains a share in the equity of the pool which is
reported as cash and cash equivalents in the statement of net position since cash may be withdrawn from the pool at any
time without penalty. Interest earned by the cash and investments pool is distributed to CRTPA monthly based on daily
balances. Liquid investments classified as cash and cash equivalents include repurchase agreements purchased under
the terms of the City’s depository contract, open repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit, banker’s acceptances,
commercial paper, and U.S. Treasury direct and agency obligations. Investment securities are carried at fair value.

The bank balances are insured by federal depository insurance and, for the amount in excess of such federal depository
insurance, by the State of Florida’s Public Depository Act (the Act).  Provisions of the Act require that public deposits may
only be made at qualified public depositories. The Act requires each qualified public depository to deposit with the State
Treasurer eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required collateral as determined by the provisions of the Act. In
the event of a failure by a qualified public depository, losses, in excess of federal depository insurance and proceeds from
the sale of the securities pledged by the defaulting depository, are assessed against the other qualified public depositories
of the same type as the depository in default. When other qualified public depositories are assessed additional amounts,
they are assessed on a pro-rata basis.

22



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION / DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS (CONTINUED)

Investments held in the cash and investments pool measured at fair value are categorized within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments classified in Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets. Investments classified in Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy are based upon observable, market-based inputs for similar, but not identical, investments. Debt securities
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value
securities based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices. Investments classified in Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy are based upon extrapolated data, proprietary pricing models and indicative quotes for similar securities.

CRTPA has adopted the City’s Non-Pension Investment Policy, therefore, the investment policies used by CRTPA are the
investment policies of the City. The City’s Non-Pension Investment Policy, which is approved by the City Commission,
governs the investment of all non-pension monies of the City, including the cash and investments pool, and specifies the
types of investments that are authorized for purchase. The investment policies also identify various portfolio parameters
addressing issuer diversification, term to maturity and liquidity, and requirement of “purchase versus delivery” perfection
for securities held by a third party on behalf of and in the name of the City. Under the Non-Pension Investment Policy, the
City Treasurer-Clerk is designated to invest all monies belonging to the City pursuant to the policy, and is responsible for
managing the day-today investment of all monies. The investment policy is described in more detail in the City’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) along with fair value and credit and interest rate disclosures pertaining to the
cash and investments pool. The City ACFR may be obtained by contacting the Financial Services Director at Mailbox A-29,
300 South Adams Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 or via the web at Patrick.Twyman@talgov.com.

CAPITAL ASSETS - Capital assets are defined as assets with a cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life
greater than one year.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost when purchased. Equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method
over an estimated useful life of 5 to 10 years. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES – CRTPA employees have the choice of selecting either the City of Tallahassee’s benefit
options or those of Leon County. Currently, all staff members have selected to participate in the City of Tallahassee’s
compensated absences policy. Permanent employees earn vacation and sick leave starting with the first day of
employment. Accumulated current and long-term vacation and sick leave amounts are accrued when earned in the
government-wide financial statements. A liability for the accumulated vacation and sick leave is reported in the
governmental funds only if it is expected to be paid as a result of employee resignation or retirement as of September 30,
2023.

Vacation leave is earned based on years of continuous and creditable service as follows:

Executive Senior Management General

Creditable
Service Hours

Leave Earned
per Hour

Creditable
Service Hourse

Leave Earned
per Hour

Creditable
Service Hours

Leave Earned
per Hour

0-2,079 0.057693 0-2,079 0.057693 0-10,400 0.057693
2,080-10,400 0.080770 2,080-10,400 0.069231 10,401-20,800 0.069231
10,401-20,800 0.092308 10,401-20,800 0.080770 20,801-41,600 0.080770
over 20,800 0.103847 20,801-41,600 0.092308 over 41,600 0.092308

- over 41,600 0.103847 -

23



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION / DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS (CONTINUED)

A maximum of 344 hours of vacation leave time may be carried over from one calendar year to the next for executive
employees and a maximum of 264 hours for senior management and general employees. An employee who terminates
employment with the CRTPA is paid for any unused vacation leave accumulated to the time of termination.

Sick leave is earned at the rate of .023077 hours for each hour of service with no maximum limit on the number of hours
which may be accumulated.

An employee who terminates from the CRTPA for any reason other than termination for cause will be paid one-half of the
total amount of sick leave (without regard to catastrophic illness leave) accumulated by him or her on the effective date of
termination. If the employee dies, the sick leave amount will be paid to the employee’s beneficiary or estate. Retiring
employees can elect the option of using the accumulated sick leave amount to purchase single coverage health insurance
in lieu of receiving payment for such accumulated sick leave.

NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE - In the government-wide financial statements, net position is unrestricted with the
exception of amounts invested in capital assets (net of related debt). For governmental fund financial statements, the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54). This Statement defines the different types of fund balances that a governmental entity
must use for fund financial reporting purposes.

GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the fund balance categories listed
below:

1. Nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and
notes receivable, and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned),

2. Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation,

3. Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined
by a formal action of the CRTPA Board (the CRTPA’s highest level of decision-making authority),

4. Assigned fund balance classification is intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet
the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, and

5. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the government’s general fund and includes all spendable
amounts not contained in the other classifications.

CRTPA’s fund balance is all committed for transportation.

24



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note II STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

An annual budget is adopted on a budgetary basis for the General Fund. The CRTPA members must approve any revision
that alters the total expenditures of the operating budget. There is no requirement to legally adopt a budget for the Special
Revenue Fund.

Encumbrance accounting is used to reserve that portion of an applicable appropriation for which requisitions, purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditures of resources have been issued. Any encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance, and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities
because the commitments will be re-appropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

B. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

The CRTPA had no material violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions.

NOTE III DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS

A. CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2023.  The Agency's only assets totaling $29,000,
classifed as equipment, are fully depreciated.  

B. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As written in Section F, paragraph 1 of the CRTPA’s by-laws, “Each member government shall pay a proportional share of
the operating costs of the CRTPA, over and above the amount annually provided by federal and state sources.
Proportional costs are based on population and stipulated in the interlocal agreements forming the CRTPA.”

In addition, due to the reimbursement nature of the grants which primarily fund the CRTPA, the City of Tallahassee
provides up-front funding to the CRTPA; as of September 30, 2023 the net amount due from the CRTPA members was
approximately $42,902.

Certain general and administrative functions are charged to the CRTPA by the City of Tallahassee. For the year ended
September 30, 2023, the amount of these charges was $71,571

25



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023
NOTE IV OTHER INFORMATION

A. RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The CRTPA is exposed to various risks of loss. The CRTPA participates in the City’s Risk Management Program
(Program). This Program provides coverage for worker’s compensation by self-insuring primary losses up to $1,250,000.
Losses above that amount are insured through an excess policy. General liability, automobile and employment liability are
totally self-insured. General and automobile liability losses are statutorily limited by sovereign immunity of $200,000 per
person and $300,000 per accident. Prior to October 2011, the statutory limit was $100,000 per person and $200,000 per
accident. The Program also provides for Employment Practice Liability such as allegations of race, gender, and other
discrimination or disparate treatment. Liabilities for losses would be recorded when a loss occurs and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. There were no such losses at September 30, 2023. In the past three years, there have been no
claims.

B. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS

RETIREMENT PLANS - Employees of the CRTPA participate in the City of Tallahassee benefits program. Employees in
the City of Tallahassee (the City) program are eligible to participate in the City's General Employees’ Pension Plan (The
Plan).

City of
Tallahassee

Plan

Plan Obligations and Expense (in thousands):
Net pension liability $ (362)
Pension related deferred outflows 827
Pension related deferred inflows (572)

 Membership Statistical - 2023
Retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees -
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet

receiving benefits -
Active employees 5

The Plan is a cost sharing multiple-employer plan established by Chapter 14 of the City Code of Ordinances. Changes to
the Plan can only occur through a change in the law by the City Commission. The Plan is administered by the City of
Tallahassee Treasurer-Clerk's Office, under guidance from the Plan's Board of Trustees, which is composed of the
members of the City Commission and one City police officer or firefighter. The Plan includes defined benefit and defined
contribution provisions. Currently, there are five (5) employees participating in the plan

The Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution provisions are combined and reported as one plan in the City of
Tallahassee's financial statements. The City does not issue a stand-alone financial report on the City Plan. The City's
financial statements may be obtained by contacting the Financial Services Director at Mailbox A-29, 300 South Adams
Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 or via the web at Patrick.Twyman@talgov.com.

26



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

B. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
1. DEFINED BENEFIT PROVISION

The Plan is established in Chapter 14 of the Municipal Code, through Parts A, B, C and D in Article II. for general
employees with Parts A, B and C are closed to new participants. Effective April 1, 2013, the City Commission approved
changes to the City's General Employees' Pension Plan creating Part D participants. Part D provides coverage to all new
employees hired after that date. All members of the City Plan are covered by one of these parts depending upon
employment date. These parts provide a detailed description of the various defined benefit provisions. These provisions
include the types of employees covered, benefit provisions, employee eligibility requirements for normal, early and/or
vested retirements, and the related benefits of these retirement, pre-retirement death benefits, and provisions for disability
retirement. There are also post retirement cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) and health care supplements. 

City Plan
Part C–Employees hired prior to April 1, 2013 Part D–Employees hired after

April 1, 2013
Normal Retirement Benefits:
Age 62 (or 30 years of Credited Service,

regardless of age)
65 (or 33 years of Credited
Service, regardless of age)

Years of Credited
Service (minimum)

5 5

Benefit Calculation 2.25% x AFC x Years of Credited Service 2.25% x AFC x Years of
Credited Service

Average Final
Compensation
(AFC)

Higher of: 1) final 3 yrs; 2) any consecutive 3 yrs –
1/1987 to 12/2005, escalated by 3%; or
3) any consecutive 3 yrs during 1/1987 to the
date of retirement.

Average of the highest
consecutive 5 years of Credited
Service

Maximum Benefit 81% of AFC 81% of AFC
COLA 3% increase in benefits each 10/1 starting at the

later of normal retirement date, or age 55 (under
age and service eligibility); or age 50 (under service
eligibility)

3% increase in benefits each
10/1 starting at the later of
normal retirement date of age 65

Early Retirement If a member is retiring under the age and service eligibility, Normal Retirement Benefit is
reduced by 4.8% per year for each year by which the Early Retirement date precedes the
Normal Retirement date.
If a member is retiring under the service eligibility, the Normal Retirement Benefit is
reduced by 5% per year for each year by which the Early Retirement date precedes the
Normal Retirement date.

27



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

B. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

1. DEFINED BENEFIT PROVISION (CONTINUED)
City Plan

Part C–Employees hired prior to April 1, 2013 Part D–Employees hired after
April 1, 2013

Normal Retirement Benefits:
Disability Five years of Credited Service for non-service connected disability. None for service

connected disability.
Benefit: The greater of 1) the member's accrued benefit to date of disability; and 2) the
member's benefit with service projected to normal retirement date not to exceed 50% of
AFC in effect on the date of disability.

Contributions Rates – actuarially determined for the year ended September 30, 2022
City 23.07%
Employee 5.00%

2. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PROVISION

The City Plan's defined contribution provisions are described in Article V. All employees may elect to contribute a portion of
their salary to the defined contribution plan, also known as the Matched Annuity Plan (MAP). Employees can contribute up
to, but not exceed, the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Service. CRTPA contributes 5% to each
employee's MAP account. Upon reaching normal retirement age or retiring, a participant shall be paid his contributions,
together with accrued earnings. If an employee uses the contributions and accrued earnings to purchase an annuity
contract, the Plan will increase the amount of funds (only on the CRTPA’s 5%, employee flex matched contribution and
employees' contribution up to the 5%) used by the participant by a factor of 50 percent. Employee and the employer’s 5%
contribution, plus accrued earnings thereon, are 100% refundable to the employee if the employee elects to terminate his
vesting rights or is not vested at the date of employment termination.

Net Pension Liability – The total pension liability and net pension liability for the reporting period ending September 30,
2023 were determined as of September 30, 2022, as reported in the October 1, 2020 actuarial valuation.

The CRTPA’s proportionate share of the City Plan is based on the covered payroll, since that was the basis for
determining employer contributions. The CRTPA’s portion of the net pension liability of the City Plan as of September 30,
2023 was as follows (in thousands):

Total pension liability $ 5,736
Plan fiduciary net position 5,374
Net pension liability 362
Plan fiduciary net position as a % of total pension liability 93.69%
CRTPA’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.40%

28



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

B. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

2. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PROVISION (CONTINUED)
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – The CRTPA’s total pension liability and contribution rates was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2022,  using  the  following significant actuarial assumptions applied to all periods
included in the measurement. The actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, which is two
years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. The actuarially determined contribution is
projected to the contribution year using conventional actuarial projection methods.

City Plan

Valuation Date September 30, 2022

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age, normal

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to
the type of eligibility condition

Inflation Rate 2.50%

Salary Increase, Including Inflation Rate A range of 2.95% to 5%, depending on completed
years of service including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 7.40%

Mortality Rate The mortality tables used are the same as those
used in the July 1,2022 Pension Actuarial Valuation
of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) for Regular
(other than K-12 School Instructional Personnel)
members.  These tables are based on the Pub-2010
mortality improvements projected for healthy lives to
all future years after 2010 using Scale ME-2018. 

3. INVESTMENTS

Investments – Plan assets are managed in accordance with the City Plan's Pension Investment Policy. The table below
presents the adopted asset allocation as of September 30, 2023.

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Percentage

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Domestic equity 36% 8.1
International equity 9 8.5
Emerging markets equity 4 10.2
Fixed income 17 2.1
Real estate 15 5.6
Private equity 7 12.1
Private credit 7 7.0
Timber 5 4.9

Total 100%

29



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

B. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

3. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
The City Plan’s investments are managed by various investment managers under contract with the Boards who have
discretionary authority of the assets managed by them and within the City Plan’s investment guidelines as established by
the Board. The investments are held in trust by the City Plan’s custodian in the City Plan’s name. The City of Tallahassee
Sinking Fund Commission is responsible for making investment policy changes. These assets are held exclusively for the
purpose of providing benefits to members of the City Plan and their beneficiaries.

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the annual money-weighted rate of return on the City Plan’s investments, net of
investment expense, was 6.9%. The money-weighted rate of return takes into account cash flows into and from the
various investments of the City Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon an asset allocation study that was
conducted for the City Plan by its investment consultant toward the end of fiscal year 2018. The study was prepared by the
City Plan's investment consultant, and went through numerous iterations before a final asset allocation was established.
The study looked at expected rates of return for twenty-one (21) different asset classes, as well as examining expected
standard deviations and correlations among these various asset classes.

4. DISCOUNT RATES

Discount Rates – The discount rates were used to measure the total pension liability for the City Plan are indicated below.
This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.40%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the total actuarially
determined contribution rates and the employee rate. Based on these assumptions, the City Plan's fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on investments (7.40%) was applied to all periods of projected benefits payments to
determine the total pension liability.

The table below represents the sensitivity of the net pension liability/(asset) to changes in the discount rate. The sensitivity
analysis shows the City Plan and the CRTPA’s proportionate share if the discount rate calculated is 1% higher or 1% lower
than the current discount rate (in thousands):

CRTPA Net Pension Liability (Asset) – City Plan

1% Decrease
(6.40%)

Current Discount Rate
(7.40%)

1% Increase
(8.40%)

City Plan $ 273,508 $ 90,633 $ (60,431)
CRTPA'S Proportionate

Share $ 1,092 $ 362 $ (241)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources – In accordance with GASB 68, paragraphs 54 and 71,
changes in the net pension liability are recognized as pension expense in the current measurement period, except as
shown below. For each of the following, a portion is recognized in pension expense in the current measurement period,
and the balance is amortized as deferred outflows or inflows of resources using a systematic and rational method over a
closed period, as defined below:

 Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic and demographic factors which are

amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pensions

through the pension plan, both active and inactive.

30



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

B. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

4. DISCOUNT RATES (CONTINUED)

 Changes of assumptions or other inputs which are amortized over the average expected remaining service life of

all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan, both active and inactive.

 Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and proportionate share of contributions which are

amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pensions

through the pension plan, both active and inactive.

 Differences between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments are amortized over five years.

For the year ended September 30, 2023, CRTPA recognized pension expense of $100,000 for its proportionate share of
the Plan.  At September 30, 2023, CRTPA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the Plan from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Net Deferred
Outflows

(Inflows)of
Resources

Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 55 $ 3 $ 52

Assumption Changes 20 25 (5)
Change in cost-sharing

allocation ercentage 37 5 32
Net difference between

projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 626 539 87

Total $ 738 $ 572 $ 166

Deferred outflows of resources related to the City Plan in the amount of $89,000 related to CRTPA contributions to the
plan paid subsequent to the measurement date and prior to the employer’s fiscal year end will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized as follows (in thousands): 

Year Ending
September 30,

2024 $ 50
2025 (17)
2026 (25)
2027 158

Total $ 166

31



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)
C. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

As discussed in Note IV.B., employees of the CRTPA have the option of participating in either the County's or the City's
benefit programs. The CRTPA, through the City’s Retiree Medical Insurance Plan (OPEB Plan), provides health insurance
and prescription drug coverage to its active and retired employees. Pursuant to Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, the
CRTPA is required to permit participation in the health insurance program by retirees and their eligible dependents at a
cost to the retiree that is no greater than the cost at which coverage is available for active employees. In addition, the
CRTPA, via its participation in the City's program, has elected to provide a partial subsidy to its retirees to offset the cost of
such health insurance. As of September 30, 2023, there were no employees of the CRTPA receiving benefits under the
OPEB Plan. The City does not issue a stand alone financial report on the OPEB Plan. The City of Tallahassee's Other
Post-Employment Benefit Plan is described in more detail in the City's Annual Financial Report along with the Schedule of
Funding Progress. That report may be obtained by writing to Department of Financial Services, 300 South Adams Street,
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 or by calling 850-891-8520.

CRTPA's proportionate share of the City's OPEB Plan is 0.30% and was determined based on the amount of covered
payroll as an estimate for determining each employer's proportionate share. The aggregate amounts, reported by the
CRTPA as of September 30, 2023, of net OPEB liabilities, related deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and OPEB
expenses using a valuation date and measurement date of September 30, 2021 are summarized as follows (in
thousands):

OPEB Plan Obligations and Expenses CRTPA Share of City Plan Amounts
Net OPEB Liability $190
OPEB Related Deferred Outflows  86
OPEB Related Deferred Inflows  87
OPEB Expense 12

Benefits - A member receives a reduced rate on the health insurance premium for the City's health insurance plan. All
reduced rate premiums will be deducted from the retiree's pension benefit. If the health insurance premium exceeds the
pension benefit amount, the member will pay the City for the difference.

Eligibility - A member may continue on the City's health insurance plan upon retirement if the member is drawing a pension
for Normal Retirement, Early Retirement or Disability Retirement. The retiree may continue to cover any qualified
dependents that were on the City's health insurance plan at the time of retirement. A member who is a Deferred Retiree
(eligible to retire upon termination but chooses to defer the commencement of a pension benefit) may choose to remain on
the City's health insurance plan and pay the reduced health insurance premium until the commencement of a pension
benefit.

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of OPEB Plan members and the City are established and may be amended
by the City Commission. These contributions are neither mandated or guaranteed. The City has retained the reight to
unilaterally modify its payment for retiree health care benefits. Effective October 1, 2010, the City implemented a "cap" on
employer contributions for retirees. Accordingly, the City's subsidy was frozen at the 2010 levels, and retirees must absorb
all future premium rate increases.

Net OPEB Liability - At September 30, 2023, the CRTPA reported a liability of $189,776 for its employees' proportionate
share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of September 30, 2022.

32



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

C. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)
The total OPEB liability and contribution rate was determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2021. The total
OPEB liability was rolled forward one year. The significant assumptions used were as follows:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Normal Inflation 2.25%.
Discount Rate 4.50%, the resulting Single Discount Rate based on the expected rate of

return on OPEB Plan investments as of September 30, 2022 at 7.40% and
the long term municipal bond rate as of September 30, 2022 at 4.40%.

Salary Increases 2.95% to 6.40%, including inflation; varies by plan type and years of service.
Retirement Age Experience based table of rates that are specific to the plan and type of

eligibility condition.
Mortality Mortality Tables used in the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation of the Florida

Retirement System. They are based on the results of a statewide
experience study covering the period 2013 through 2018 These rates were
taken from adjusted Pub-2010 mortality tables published by SOA with
generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2018.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates Based on the Getzen Model, with trend starting at 4.4% for 2022 and 4.1%
for 2023 (based on actual premium rates), followed by 5.6% for 2024, and
gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 3.75%.

Aging factors and Expenses Based on the 2013 SOA Study "Health Care Costs From Birth to Death;
Investment expenses are net of the investment returns; and Administrative
expenses are included in the per capita health costs.

Other Information Notes: The following assumption changes have been reflected in the Schedule of
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability for the measurement period ending
September 30, 2022:
- The Single Discount Rate was changed from 2.36% to 4.50%.

33



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

C. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of net OPEB Liability to changes in the Single Discount Rate - The following presents the plan’s net OPEB
liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 4.50%, as well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher (in thousands):

1% Decrease 3.50%

Current Single Discount
Rate Assumption

4.50% 1% Increase 5.50%

$213 $190 $170

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The following presents the plan’s net
OPEB liability, calculated using the assumed trend rates as well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a trend rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher (in thousands):

1% Decrease

Current Healthcare
Cost Trend Rate

Assumption 1% Increase

$173 $190 $210

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources Related to OPEB - In accordance with GASB 75, changes
in the net OPEB liability are recognized as OPEB expense in the current measurement period, except as shown below. For
each of the following, a portion is recognized in OPEB expense in the current measurement period, and the balance is
amortized as deferred outflows or inflows of resources using a systematic and rational method over a closed period, as
defined below:

 Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic and demographic factors which are

amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with benefits

through the OPEB plan, both active and inactive

 Changes of assumptions or other inputs which are amortized over the average expected remaining service life of

all employees that are provided with benefits through the OPEB plan, both active and inactive.

 Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and proportionate share of contributions which are

amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with benefits

through the OPEB plan, both active and inactive.

 Differences between expected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments are amortized over five years.

34



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

C. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Based  on a valuation date of September 30, 2021  and measurement  date of  September 30, 2022, CRTPA recognized
OPEB expenses of $12,115 for the year ended September 30, 2023. At September 30, 2023, CRTPA reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB Plan from the following sources (in
thousands):

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Net Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Change in Net OPEB Liability due to Change in
Cost-Sharing Allocation Percentage $ 35 $ - $ 35

Assumption Changes 27 67 (40)
Differences between expected and actual

experience 8 20 (12)

Total $ 70 $ 87 $ (17)

Deferred outflows of resources related to the plan of $16,000, resulting from CRTPA contributions to the plan paid
subsequent to the measurement date and prior to the CRTPA's fiscal year, will be recognized as a reduction of the net
OPEB liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as OPEB related deferred outflows
and inflows of resources will be recognized in future OPEB expense, as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending
September 30 Net Amount

2024 $ 3
2025 4
2026 (1)
2027 (8)
2028 (5)

Thereafter (10)

Total $ (17)

D. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Governmental activities (in
thousands):
Compensated absences $ 32 $ 57 $ 62 $ 27
OPEB liability 240 - 50 190
Net pension liability - 362 - 362

Total noncurrent liabilities $ 272 $ 419 $ 112 $ 579

35



Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

Note IV Other Information (CONTINUED)

E. CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally
the Federal and State governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability
of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined
at this time although the CRTPA expects amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

F. EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The CRTPA has evaluated subsequent events through June 29, 2023, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued.

36



REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

THIS SUBSECTION CONTAINS THE FOLLOWING:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Note to Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) - City of Tallahaassee Pension Plan

Schedule of Contributions - City of Tallahaassee Pension Plan

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratio

Schedule of Contributions - OPEB

37



Capital Regional Transportation Planning Agency
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
Year ended September 30, 2023

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Budgeted Amounts
Actual

Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final
(Budgetary

Basis)
Positive

(Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance - October 1 $ 7 $ 7 $ 7 $ -
Resources

Taxes - - - -
Intergovernment Revenues 2,906 2,906 1,415 (1,491)
Interest Earned - - 1 1

Amounts Available for Appropriations 2,913 2,913 1,423 (1,490)

Charges to Appropriations
Transportation 2,907 2,907 1,410 1,497
Transfers to Other Funds 6 6 6 -

Total Charges to Appropriations 2,913 2,913 1,416 1,497

Budgetary Fund Balance - September 30 $ - $ - $ 7 $ 7

  Note: There is no requirement to legally adopt a budget for the Special Revenue Fund.

See Independent Auditors' Report. 

38



Capital Regional Transportation Planning Agency

Note to Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

For the fiscal year ended

September 30, 2023

(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) available for appropriation from
the budgetary comparison schedule.

Differences – budget to GAAP:

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is budgetary resource but is
not a current year revenue for financial reporting purposes.

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) available for appropriation from the
budgetary comparison

Differences – budget to GAAP:

Miscellaneous items treated as budgetary outflows but not as
expenditures for financial reporting 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 

39



Capital Regional Transportation Planning Agency
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)

City of Tallahassee Pension Plan
September 30, 2023

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Measurement year ending
September 30, 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 362 $ (332) $ 571 $ 607 $ 674 $ 193 $ 112 $ 67 $ 95

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of Total Pension
Liability %93.69 %105.00 %88.61 %87.64 %92.12 %95.02 %95.00 %97.00 %96.00

Employer's Proportion of the Net
Pension Liability %0.40 %- %0.37 %0.38 %0.38 %0.34 %- %- %-

Covered Employee Payroll $ 506 $ 452 $ 417 $ 400 $ 389 $ 389 $ 380 $ 294 $ 257

Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a
Percentage of Covered Employee
Payroll %71.54 %(73.00) %136.00 %151.75 %96.14 %49.61 %29.00 %22.79 %36.96

See Independent Auditors' Report. 

40



Capital Regional Transportation Planning Agency
Schedule of Contributions

City of Tallahassee Pension Plan
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Fiscal year ending
September 30,

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution

Actual
Contribution

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

Covered
Payroll

Actual
Contribution

as a % of
Covered
Payroll

2014 $ 37 $ 37 $ - $ 242 15.29
2015 39 39 - 257 15.18
2016 38 38 - 294 12.93
2017 50 50 - 380 13.16
2018 73 73 - 389 18.77
2019 82 82 - 400 20.50
2020 99 99 - 417 23.74
2021 116 116 - 452 25.66
2022 89 89 - 506 17.59
2023 89 89 - 506 17.59

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as the information becomes
available.

Notes to the Schedule of Contributions

Valuation date: September 30, 2022
Measurement date: September 30, 2022

Notes: Actuarially determined contribution rates were calculated as of
September 30, 2022, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.
The actuarially determined contribution is projected to the contribution
year using conventional actuarial projection methods. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 
Amortization method Level Percent of Pay (with 2.31% payroll growth assumption), Closed
Remaining amortization period 28 years
Asset valuation method 20% of the difference between expected actuarial value (based on

assumed return) and market value is recognized each year with 20%
corridor around market value

Inflation 2.5 %
Salary increases A range of 2.95% to 5.00%, depending on completed years of service,

including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.40%
Retirement age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility

condition
Mortality The mortality tables used are the same as those used in the July 1, 2022

Pension Actuarial Valuation of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) for
Regular (other than K-12 School Instructional Personnel) members. 
These tables are based on the Pub-2010 mortality tables with mortality
improvements projected for healthy lives to all future years after 2010
using Scale MP-2018.

Notes See Discussion of Valuation Results in the October 1, 2022 Actuarial
Valuation Report dated January 31, 2023.

See Independent Auditors' Report.

41



Capital Regional Transportation Planning Agency
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Based on measurement periods ending September 30)

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Measurement year ending September 30,

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost $ 6 $ 6 $ 6 $ 5 $ 6
Interest on the total OPEB liability 7 7 8 10 9
Actual and expected experience difference - (8) (14) (3) -
Changes in assumptions (56) 18 (27) 33 (7)
Changes in allocation percentages - - - 20 43
Benefit payments (13) (12) (12) (13) (12)

Net change in total OPEB liability (56) 11 (39) 52 39
Total OPEB liability - beginning 279 269 290 225 186
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 223 279 251 277 225

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contribution - employer 7 - - 6 5
Employer contribution to OPEB fund 7 7 6 - -
Employer contributions not deposited in OPEB Trust

Fund - 6 6 - -
Net investment income (7) 8 4 1 3
Benefit payments (6) (6) (6) (6) (7)
Benefit Payments not reimbursed (7) (6) (6) - -

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (6) 9 4 1 1
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 40 31 25 14 13
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 34 40 29 15 13

Net OPEB liability (a)-(b) 190 239 222 262 211

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability %15.04 %14.26 %11.55 %5.07 %9.62

Covered-employee payroll $ 506 $ 452 $ 417 $ 400 $ 389
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee

payroll

%37.51 %53.02 %53.24 %65.50 %54.13

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as the information
becomes available.

See Independent Auditors' Report. 

42



Capital Regional Transportation Planning Agency
Schedule of Contributions-OPEB

Last Ten Fiscal Years*
(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Fiscal year ending
September 30,

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution

Actual
Contribution

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

Covered
Payroll

Actual
Contribution

as a % of
Covered
Payroll

2018 $ 10 $ 4 $ 6 $ 294 1.36
2019 $ 14 $ 5 $ 9 $ 389 1.29
2020 15 6 9 400 1.50
2021 16 7 9 452 1.55
2022 17 7 10 506 1.38
2023 17 7 10 531 1.32

Note:Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as the information becomes
available.

Notes to Schedule of Contributions

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, which is 12 months prior to the end of the fiscal
year in which contributions are made and reported

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining amortization period 23 years

Asset valuation method Market Value

Inflation 2.25%

Salary increases 2.95% to 6.4% including inflation; varies by plan type and years of
service

Investment rate of return 2.36%, net of OPEB plan expense.

Retirement age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the plan and type of
eligibility condition.

Mortality Mortality tables used in the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation of the Florida
Retirement System (FRS). They are based on the results of a
statewide experience study covering the period 2013 through 2018.
These rates were taken from adjusted Pub-2010 mortality tables
published by SOA with generational mortality improvements using
Scale MP-2018.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates Based on the Getzen Model, with a trend starting at 4.4% for 2022 and
4.10% for 2023 (based on actual premium increases), followed by
5.60% for 2024, and then gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend
rate of 3.75%.

Aging Factors Based on the 2013 SOA Study "Health Care Costs - From Birth  to
Death". 

Expenses Investment returns are net of the investment expenses;  and,
Administrative expenses are  included in the premium  costs.

Other Information: There were no benefit changes during the year. 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 

43



OTHER REPORTS

THIS SUBSECTION CONTAINS THE FOLLOWING:

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance with the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Independent Accountants' Examination Report

Independent Auditor's Management Letter Required by the Office of the Auditor General 

44



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Governing Board
  of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities and each major fund of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency (the Agency) as of 
and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
January 1, 2035.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.

45



Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
June 10, 2024 

46



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Governing Board
  of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency’s (the Agency) compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Agency’s major 
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2023. The Agency’s major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended September 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section 
of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Agency’s compliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management’s Responsibility for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statues, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to its federal 
programs. 

47



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Agency’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect 
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from 
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on 
compliance about the Agency’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a 
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we:

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Agency’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

 Obtain an understanding of the Agency’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.

48



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
June 10, 2024 

49



Program Contract No
Assistance Listing

No
 Expenditures

FY2023 
FEDERAL PROGRAMS

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Pass through Florida Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction G2782 20.205 1,437,883              

   Total 20.205 1,437,883              

UMTA Technical Studies Grants G2528 20.505 144,492 

   Total 20.505 144,492 

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES 1,582,375              

Notes:

2) The infromation in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2, US Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administartive Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Unfiromr Guidance)
3) No federal financial assistance was expended in non-cash assistance
4) There were no subrecipeint expenditures in FY 2023

Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Schedule of Expenditures for Federal Financial Assistance Awards

September 30, 2023

1) The Schedule was prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting

50



CAPITAL REGION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

I. Summary of Auditors’ Results:

Financial Statements:

Type of audit report issued on the basic financial statements: Unmodified.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes    X no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes    X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes    X no

Federal Awards:

Internal Control over Major Programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes    X no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes    X none reported

Type of report issued on compliance for each major federal program: Unmodified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes    X none reported

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X yes no

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type 
B programs:

$750,000

Major program identification:

Assistance Listing
Number Program Name

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

II. Financial Statement Findings: None.

III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs: None.

IV. Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings: Not applicable as no findings were reported in the
prior audit.

V. Corrective Action Plan: Not applicable as no findings have been reported.

51



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ EXAMINATION REPORT 

To the Governing Board 
  of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency: 

We have examined the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency’s (the Agency) compliance with 
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies (the Statute), for the year ended 
September 30, 2023. Management is responsible for the Agency’s compliance with the Statute. Our 
responsibility is to obtain reasonable assurance by evaluating the Agency’s compliance with the Statute 
and performing other procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to express an opinion that 
conveys the results of our evaluation based on our examination. 

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards for a direct examination 
engagement established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). Those 
standards require that we obtain reasonable assurance by evaluating the Agency’s compliance with the 
Statute, and performing other procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to express an opinion 
that conveys the results of our evaluation of the Agency’s compliance with the Statute. The nature, 
timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the 
risks that the Agency was not in compliance with the Statute in all material respects, whether due to fraud 
or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

We are required to be independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our examination engagement. 

In our opinion, the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency complied, in all material respects, 
with the aforementioned requirements for the year ended September 30, 2023. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
June 10, 2024 

52



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ MANAGEMENT LETTER REQUIRED
BY OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

To the Governing Board
  of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
(the Agency), as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon 
dated January 1, 2035.

Auditors’ Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida 
Office of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards; Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major 
Federal Program and Report on Internal Control over Compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance; Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs; and Independent Accountant’s Examination 
Report on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 
315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated January 1, 2035, should be 
considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective 
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial 
audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the 
preceding financial audit report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this 
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The legal authority for the 
primary government and component units of the reporting entity is disclosed in Note 1 of the basic 
financial statements.

53



 

Financial Condition and Management 

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate 
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Agency met one or 
more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific 
conditions met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Agency, did not meet any of the 
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.  

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures for the Agency. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the 
Agency’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations 
made by management and review of financial information provided by same. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations 
to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we had no such recommendations. 

Special District Component Units 

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.c., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we communicate the 
failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, to 
provide the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit within the audited 
financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section 
218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we did not note any special district 
component units that failed to provide the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance with 
Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes.  

Additional Matters 

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, 
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of 
those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings. 

Purpose of this Letter 

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor 
General, Federal and other granting agencies, Agency Board, management, others within the Agency, and 
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
June 10, 2024 

54



STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

The purpose of this item is to discuss and approve the Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 CRTPA Budget. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

At the September 5, 2024 meeting, the Executive Committee discussed and approved the proposed 
2025 CRTPA Budget. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS

The FY 2025 tentative budget (Attachment 1) is presented for Board review and approval. 
For comparison, the CRTPA’s FY 2024 budget is included. In addition, the project budgets for the 
approved work tasks are provided. As with any budget, there are increases in some areas and 
decreases in others. Overall, the CRTPA’s fiscal year budget increase is 2.71%. 

Personnel costs increased by 2.43% overall. The proposed cost-of-living adjustment is 4.2% and the 
pension budget increase is 6%, compared to the 5% and 9% respectively in FY 2023. Two employees 
have modified their health benefit coverage, reducing the number of dependents covered. A lower 
cost-of-living adjustment and reductions in health coverage offset other cost increases to personnel 
and fringe. 

Overall, the operating expenditures increase is 1.62%. Note the changes to the food and unclassified 
supplies budgets. The prior years’ food budget was reduced in light of Covid. This budget restores the 
pre-Covid funding ($2,000) and considers inflated food costs. The increase to the unclassified supplies 
budget is for promotional materials to support public engagement activities for the Long Range 
Transportation Plan update. 

The Internal Services expense increased 9.37% over last year. The Accounting expense is the largest 
increase, reflecting services provided by both the City of Tallahassee’s Grant and Finance Departments. 
Decreases in Revenue Collection and Purchasing costs provide a slight offset. 

TYPE OF ITEM: Action 

AGENDA  ITEM  6 C 

CRTPA FISCAL YEAR  2025  BUDGET 

September 16, 2024 



Agenda Item 6C – Fiscal Year 2025 Budget  
SEPTEMBER 19, 2023____________________________________________________________________________          _ PAGE 2

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS (Cont.)

The Unclassified Contractual Services budget is detailed in Attachment 2. Funds in this category vary 
from year to year dependent on the CRTPA’s work load and FDOT’s budgeting of discretionary urban 
funds. When comparing the actual operating costs removing these funds allows for an accurate 
comparison. This is illustrated in Attachment 3. As with any budget, there may be slight adjustments 
as the City of Tallahassee finalizes its budget.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Option 1: Recommend the CRTPA approve the proposed FY 2025 Budget. 

Option 2: Provide other direction. 

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1: CRTPA FY 2025 Operating Budget 
Attachment 2: CRTPA FY 2025 Unclassified Contractual Services Budget  
Attachment 3: CRTPA FY 2025 Operating and Contractual Services Budget 



511000 - Salaries 496,507$            521,332$       5.0%
511300 - Salary Enhancements 28,425$              25,496$         -10.3%
512400 - Other Salary Items 1,560$  1,560$           0%
515000 - Pension- Current 101,861$            107,973$       6.0%
515100 - Pension- MAP 29,491$              30,726$         4.2%
515600 - Mandatory Medicare 7,582$  7,899$           4.2%
516000 - Health Benefits 78,628$              67,047$         -14.7%
516100 - Flex Benefits 10,725$              11,052$         3.0%
Personnel Services 754,779$            773,085$       2.43%
521005 - Accounting/Audit Services 19,000$              21,000$         11%
521010 - Advertising 5,000$  5,000$           0%
521030 - Reproduction 507$  507$              0%
521040 - 1Unclassified Professional Fees -$  
521100 - Equipment Repairs 819$  819$              0%
521160 - Legal Services 55,000$              55,000$         0%
521180 - Unclassified Contractual Srvcs
521190 - IT Consulting Service (Software/Web/WCOT) 117,000$            117,000$       0%
522080 - Telephone 1,803$  1,803$           0%
523020 - Food 1,250$  2,500$           100%
523050 - Postage 250$  250$              0%
523060 - Office Supplies 3,000$  3,000$           0%
523065 - Computer Equipment (< $5,000) 5,000$  5,000$           0%
523080 - Unclassified Supplies 515$  1,500$           191%
524010 - Travel & Training 15,225$              15,225$         0%
524020 - Journals & Books 609$  609$              0%
524040 - Membershp/Certificates/License 3,500$  2,750$           -21%
524050 - Rent Expense- Building & Office 36,000$              36,000$         0%
541040 - Insurance 20,987$              22,137$         5%
Operating Expenditures 285,465$            290,100$       1.62%
560010 - Human Resource Expense 6,915$  7,780.00$      12.51%
560020 - Accounting Expense 17,229$              23,467.00$    36.21%
560030 - Purchasing Expense 3,805$  3,516.00$      -7.60%
560040 - Information Systems Expense 31,551$              31,455.00$    -0.30%
560070 - Revenue Collection 1,108$  132.00$         -88.09%
560082 - Facilities and Environmental 11,734$              13,314.00$    13.47%
560090 - Vehicle Garage Expense 8$  10.00$           25.00%
611300 - Facility 5,853$  5,853.00$      0.00%
Internal Service Funds 78,203$              85,527$         9.37%

Total Operating Expenditures 1,118,447$      1,148,712$  2.71%

Local Billing - Unallowable Expenses $6,500.

521040 - 1Unclassified Professional Fees account code is no longer valid. WCOT expense ($5,000) is 
budgeted under account code 521190. Audit Professional Services is now budgeted ($21,000) with a new 
account code, 521005.

All Accounts

FY 2025 Budget 09-05-2023
Executive Committee Agenda  FY 24 Adopted  FY 25 

Proposed 
Percentage 

Change

ATTACHMENT 1



(Project Budgets) SU PL CM
2.0:   Consultant Support Services 21,530$  
2.1:   Transportation Data Management  (521190)
3.0:    Long-Range Transportation Plan Update -$  450,000$             
4.0:    Consultant Support Services 21,530$  
5.0:    Consultant Support Services 29,530$  
5.7:    Tallahassee to Havana Trail Public Involvement 8,100$  
5.11:  Congestion Management Plan Technical Studies 150,000$             
5.21:  SR267 Trail Feasiibility Study (FS) 200,000$             
5.22:  Thomasville Rd. to Welaunee Grnwy Trail FS 125,000$             
5.23:  US90 West Trail FS 250,000$             
6.0:    Consultant Support Services 21,530$  
7.0:    Consultant Support Services 21,530$  
7.1:    SS4A Implementation 12,475$  
7.1.1: Safe Streets for All (SS4A) Impl. Plan (N Monroe) 40,000$  
7.1.2: SS4A US90 Tennessee St. Corridor Safety Plan 10,000$  
7.1.3:*SS4A Implementation TBD 250,000$             
7.2:    Safe School Access Study 50,000$  24,220$             -$  

TOTAL 1,211,225$          24,220$             450,000$             
* Projects on High Injury Network consistent with 7.1 Task description.
UPWP will be modified to add details.

TABLE II.  521180 - Unclassified Contractual Services -  UPWP 

$1,685,445

ATTACHMENT 2



All Accounts
511000 - Salaries 496,507$         521,332$        5.0%
511300 - Salary Enhancements 28,425$            25,496$          -10.3%
512400 - Other Salary Items 1,560$              1,560$            0%
515000 - Pension- Current 101,861$         107,973$        6.0%
515100 - Pension- MAP 29,491$            30,726$          4.2%
515600 - Mandatory Medicare 7,582$              7,899$            4.2%
516000 - Health Benefits 78,628$            67,047$          -14.7%
516100 - Flex Benefits 10,725$            11,052$          3.0%
Personnel Services 754,779$         773,085$        2.43%
521005 - Accounting/Audit Services 19,000$            21,000$          100%
521010 - Advertising 5,000$              5,000$            0%
521030 - Reproduction 507$  507$  0%
521040 - 1Unclassified Professional Fees -$  -$  
521100 - Equipment Repairs 819$  819$  0%
521160 - Legal Services 55,000$            55,000$          0%
521180 - Unclassified Contractual Srvcs 1,449,725$      1,685,445$    16%
521190 - IT Consulting Service (Software/Web/WCOT) 117,000$         117,000$        0%
522080 - Telephone 1,803$              1,803$            0%
523020 - Food 1,250$              2,500$            100%
523050 - Postage 250$  250$  0%
523060 - Office Supplies 3,000$              3,000$            0%
523065 - Computer Equipment (< $5,000) 5,000$              5,000$            0%
523080 - Unclassified Supplies 515$  1,500$            191%
524010 - Travel & Training 15,225$            15,225$          0%
524020 - Journals & Books 609$  609$  0%
524040 - Membershp/Certificates/License 3,500$              2,750$            -21%
524050 - Rent Expense- Building & Office 36,000$            36,000$          0%
541040 - Insurance 20,987$            22,137$          5%
Operating Expenditures 1,735,190$      1,975,545$    13.85%
560010 - Human Resource Expense 6,915$              7,780$            12.51%
560020 - Accounting Expense 17,229$            23,467$          36.21%
560030 - Purchasing Expense 3,805$              3,516$            -7.60%
560040 - Information Systems Expense 31,551$            31,455$          -0.30%
560070 - Revenue Collection 1,108$              132$  -88.09%
560082 - Facilities and Environmental 11,734$            13,314$          13.47%
560090 - Vehicle Garage Expense 8$  10$  25.00%
611300 - Facility 5,853$              5,853$            0.00%
Internal Service Funds 78,203$            85,527$          9.37%

Total Operating Expenditures 2,568,172$   2,834,156$  10.36%

 FY 24 Adopted  FY 25 
Proposed 

Percentage 
Change

FY 2024 Budget 09-05-2023   
Executive Committee Agenda

521040 - 1Unclassified Professional Fees account code is no longer valid. For comparison purposes to the Executive 
Committee, the WCOT expense ($5,000) is budgeted under account code 521190.  Audit Professional Services is now 
budgeted ($21,000) with a new account code, 521005.

ATTACHMENT 3



September 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 6 D 

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN KICKOFF 

TYPE OF ITEM: Action 

STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

Kittelson and Associates (KA) will be making a presentation to kick off the 2050 Long Range 
Transportation Plan (LRTP). KA will outline the key components of the LRTP, and the timeline 
associated with completing the project. 

BACKGROUND 

The Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency (CRTPA) is required to update the Long Range 
Transportation Plan (LRTP) in five-year cycles.  The LRTP is the most important document produced by 
the CRTPA since it provides the public guidance on the transportation system in the region for a 
horizon period of 20 years.  This document will include all modes of transportation ranging from 
pedestrian, bike, transit, roadway, freight, and rail.   

The last update of the LRTP (Connections 2045 Regional Mobility Plan) was completed and approved 
by the CRTPA Board in November 2020.   The LRTP is scheduled to be adopted in November 2025.   

NEXT STEPS 

The consultant team will begin working on the LRTP by initiating the development of the Public 
Participation Plan, updating the Guiding Principles, Goals and Strategies, and collecting transportation 
system data. 

ATTACHMENT 

Attachment 1 – Draft Presentation 



2050 Long Range 
Transportation Plan Kickoff
S E P T E M B E R  1 6 ,  2 0 2 4

1

ATTACHMENT 1



Project Management Team

F R A N C O  
S A R A C E N O

• Project Manager

• 23 Years experience 
with over 15 LRTPs

T Y R O N E  
S C O R S O N E

• Deputy Project Manager

• 17 Years Experience 
managing FDOT and 
MPO contracts

E L L E  
T E D D E R

• Public Engagement 
Professional

• 9 Years Experience in public 
engagement, local native



The Kittelson Team

Prime Consultant, will oversee all project 
activities and manage the team

BowStern will lead the project Public 
Involvement Process

Benesch will support the performance framework 
development for Needs Assessment and Project 
Prioritization

CTS will provide Data Collection support

Halff will provide Transportation System 
Management & Operations



Project Approach

4 4

Review Other 
Plans

Travel Demand 
Modeling

& Big Data Tools

Project
Prioritization

Optimized 
Cost Feasible 
Plan

Revenue 
Projections

Guiding Principles, 
Strategies, Measures

Insightful 
Needs 
Assessment

Maximized 
Public 
Engagement

Kickoff

Plan 
Implementation

Pipeline Projects
- Capital Circle, SW – Orange Ave to Springhill Rd
- Capital Circle, SW –Springhill Rd to Crawfordville 

Rd (Moving Florida Forward – 2025)
- Crawfordville Rd – East Ivan to SR 267
- Crawfordville Rd –SR 267 to Leon Co Line



Public Involvement

Guiding Principles

Plan Development

Cost Feasible Plan

Documentation

Project Schedule

5

A U G

2 0 2 52 0 2 4

S E P O C T N O V D E C J A N F E B M A R A P R M A Y J U N J U L A U G S E P O C T N O V



Kick-off Guiding 
Principles

Draft Cost
Feasible Plan Plan Adoption

Key Dates – touchpoints with Board

6

S E P  ‘ 2 4 N O V  ‘ 2 5J A N  ‘ 2 5 J U N E  ‘ 2 5



Questions



 September 16, 2024 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6 E 

 
NORTH MONROE STREET SAFETY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

 
TYPE OF ITEM: Action 

   
STATEMENT OF ISSUE 
 
The North Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan has been developed for CRTPA approval.  The 
plan identifies potential safety improvements along the N. Monroe corridor for roadway users 
(including motorists, pedestrian, and bicyclists).  The effort also included development of a federal 
grant application (“Safe Streets and Roads for All” (SS4A) Grant Program) to implement many of the 
identified potential improvements contained in the plan.     
 
 

CRTPA COMMITTEE ACTIONS  
 
The CRTPA’s Technical Advisory Committee and Citizen’s Multimodal Advisory Committee met on 
September 3 and both committees voted to recommend the CRTPA approve the North Monroe 
Street Safety Implementation Plan.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Option 1:  Approve the North Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan.  
 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
In June 2023, the CRTPA adopted the Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Safety Action Plan, a plan 
that identified projects and priorities addressing roadway safety in the capital region.  Associated with 
the plan’s development was the identification of High Injury Network (HIN) for roadways in the region 
with safety concerns.  The analysis identified North Monroe Street as being on the HIN for vulnerable 
road users (defined as people, including pedestrians and bicyclists, who are not protected by a car or 
truck while traveling and, as a result, at a higher risk of injury in a crash with a vehicle), shown below.   
 
  

https://crtpa.org/wp-content/uploads/N-Monroe-Safety-Implementation.pdf
https://crtpa.org/projects/safe-streets-and-roads-for-all-ss4a/


Agenda Item 6E – N. Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024  PAGE 2 
 

N. Monroe Street 
High Injury Network Map 

 

 
 
 
 
PLAN INITIATION 
In late 2023, the North Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan (“plan”) was initiated to identify 
potential safety improvements along the N. Monroe Street corridor.  The study examined a broader 
length of the N Monroe corridor from Tharpe Street to Capital Circle, Northwest (approximately 7 
miles) that included the HIN.  A project page detailing the plan’s efforts is available for review on the 
CRTPA’s website. 
 
 
PLAN DEVELOPMENT/SAFETY ANALYSIS 
Development of the N. Monroe plan included an in-depth review of the safety conditions along the 
corridor. This analysis utilized known crash locations, previous planning efforts, stakeholder/public 
engagement, available data sources, a walking and driving safety audit, and camera count analysis to 
better understand the patterns of bicycle and pedestrian movements.  Additionally, sidewalk and 
bicycle lane gaps along the corridor were identified.   
 
  

https://crtpa.org/projects/north-monroe-street-safety-implementation-plan/


Agenda Item 6E – N. Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024  PAGE 3 
 
The camera count analysis occurred over a 48-hour period in March 2024 in order to understand 
crossing movements for vulnerable road users at the following six (6) key intersection and mid-block 
locations (identified from north to south): 
 

• N Monroe/Sessions Road 
• N Monroe/Lakeshore Drive 
• N Monroe/Between Sharer Road & Lakeshore Drive 
• N Monroe/John Knox Road 
• N Monroe/Sharer Road 
• N Monroe/Tharpe Street 

 
The analysis identified and tracked the movements of bicyclists and pedestrians and ultimately 
provided a view of potentially needed corridor safety improvements.   The selection of the locations 
used for the analysis were informed through corridor crash analyses conducted for intersections and 
segments.     
 
The photograph to the 
right provides an 
analysis of pedestrian 
(in yellow) and 
bicyclist (in red) 
crossings over a 2-day 
period looking north 
along the corridor 
from Sharer Road.   At 
this location, 237 
pedestrians and 29 
bicyclists were 
identified, of which, 
21% of bicyclists and 
36% of pedestrians 
chose to jay walk at the midblock location. 

  
The camera count analysis also included a near miss review between vulnerable users and motorized 
vehicles. This near miss analysis allowed for development of proactive recommendations (the 
photographs below from the report provide examples of near misses on the corridor).    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 6E – N. Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024  PAGE 4 
 
 

Corridor Location: N. Monroe/Sharer Road 

 
 

Corridor Location: N. Monroe/John Knox Road 

 
  



Agenda Item 6E – N. Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024  PAGE 5 
 
A corridor walking and driving safety audit occurred on March 15, 2024, to further assess the 
conditions along the corridor and was comprised of a multidisciplinary team that included planners, 
engineers, and law enforcement.  Ultimately, the safety audit helped generate coordinated and 
integrated recommendations for the N. Monroe corridor through this collaborative approach. 
 
Corridor Crashes 
 
A review of data identified that between 2017 – 2023, identified that the corridor experienced 3,196 
crashes with fourteen (14) resulting in fatalities and 41 resulted in incapacitating injuries. The most 
common types of crashes were rear end (45%), left turn (15%), and sideswipe (15%). During this 
period, 21 bicycle crashes occurred on the corridor, of which one (1) was fatal, and 54 pedestrian 
crashes occurred, of which eight (8) were fatal. Bicycle and pedestrian crashes comprised 2.3% of all 
crashes and 64% of all fatal crashes in the study area. 
 
In terms of time of day, most crashes occurred during the day (71%), with some (21%) occurring at 
night but under lit conditions; only 4% occurred in the dark under unlit conditions. Most crashes took 
place on dry pavement (84%). 
 

 
PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS/POTENTIAL IMPROVEMENTS 
The North Monroe Safety Implementation Plan ultimately resulted in the identification of a series of 
potential improvements to improve safety along the corridor.  
 
General improvements for the corridor include the modification of signal walk times, implementation 
of leading pedestrian intervals, increased pavement marking maintenance, safety / roadway 
education, and traffic enforcement.  Furthermore, potential improvements may be grouped into 
linear improvements and spots improvements.   
 
Linear Improvements - Linear improvements include elimination of sidewalk and bike lane gaps as well 
as development of pedestrian fencing, high emphasis crosswalks, raised medians, pedestrian fencing / 
railings, road repairs, and turn lane modifications.  
 
Spot Improvements - Spot improvements have been identified for specific locations along the corridor 
and include the following:   
 
• Blank Out Sign  • Controlled Pedestrian Crossing  
• Directional Median Openings  • Dynamic Speed Feedback Sign  
• Green-Colored Pavement Marking  • Heavy Pedestrian Signage  
• High Friction Surface Treatment  • Near Perpendicular Right Turn  
• No U-turn Signage  • Pedestrian Fencing  
• Pedestrian / Median Refuge  • Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB)  
• Repositioning of a Transit Stop  • Truncated Domes/Detectable Warning Surface  
• Temporary Curb  

 
  
 
 



Agenda Item 6E – N. Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024  PAGE 6 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT SUBMISSION 
Associated with plan’s development was the development and submission of a federal SS4A 
implementation grant seeking funds to implement identified potential improvements for the corridor.  
The grant was submitted by the CRTPA in mid-May 2024 and was developed in coordination with the 
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) and the Blueprint Intergovernmental Agency (BPIA).  
The BPIA has committed to provide the local match ($4.2 million) for the grant ($21 million in total) 
and to implement the safety improvements upon successful award.   
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 
In addition to engagement activities associated with previous corridor planning efforts (detailed in the 
report), a public information meeting was conducted on April 29, 2024 (see Appendix A). The meeting 
was held at the Lake Jackson Community Center, the approximate midpoint of the study corridor and 
was attended by over 30 members of the public including elected officials, members of advocacy 
groups, and local jurisdictional engineering and planning staff.  Attendees were provided with 
locations and descriptions of the safety improvements via concept drawings and strip maps.  The 
participants were asked to identify their priorities through interactive exercises and provide additional 
comments/feedback.  Outreach results were ultimately incorporated into the analysis to ensure the 
potential improvements also considered direct public input.  Additionally, Attachment 3 provides a 
public comment received related to the project on September 3. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 –Draft Report Link 
Attachment 2 – Report Appendices 

• Appendix A (April 29 Workshop Information) 
• Appendix B (Data Collection: Motorized and Non-Motorized) 
• Appendix C – E (Intersection/Segment Data; Improvements Visualization; and Potential Corridor 

Improvements) 
Attachment 3 – Public Comment  
Attachment 4 – Draft Presentation 
 
 
 
 

https://crtpa.org/wp-content/uploads/Implementation-Plan-Appendix-Part-1-Appendix-A.pdf
https://crtpa.org/wp-content/uploads/N-Monroe-Safety-Implementation.pdf
https://crtpa.org/wp-content/uploads/Implementation-Plan-Appendix-Part-1-Appendix-A.pdf
https://crtpa.org/wp-content/uploads/Implementation-Plan-Appendix-Part-2-Appendix-B.pdf
https://crtpa.org/wp-content/uploads/Implementation-Plan-Appendix-Part-3-Appendix-C-E.pdf


From: Cherie Li
To: Slay, Greg; Kostrzewa, Jack; Burke, Greg; Lex, Suzanne; Mitchell, Yulonda
Subject: Public Comment for September 3 2024 TAC Meeting : North Monroe Safety Implementation Plan
Date: Tuesday, September 3, 2024 12:04:00 AM

***EXTERNAL EMAIL***
Please report any suspicious attachments, links, or requests for sensitive information.

Good evening CRTPA Executive and Assistant Directors Slay and Kostrzewa, Planning and
Programs Managers Burke and Lex, and Administrative Assistant Mitchell,

Firstly, I would like to commend the CRTPA for moving in the right direction of increasing
protections for pedestrians and cyclists along this important corridor. I believe that the
proposed improvements are necessary - but not sufficient, to achieve safety for all road users.
As the 68-page briefing on this project acknowledges, " The corridor is largely represented by
four to six lane sections with speeds ranging from 35 miles per hour (mph) to 45 mph." As a
resident of an apartment complex along the northwest part of Monroe, actual speeds can
often be higher by as much as 20 miles than the posted speed limit. "Sidewalks" such as that
pictured in Figure 2 are simply unacceptable for pedestrian use at these automobile speeds. In
fact, the majority of the Monroe corridor exhibits much of the same "pedestrian
infrastructure" - a narrow sidewalk butting up against a 50+ mph 4 or 6 lane road with
absolutely no physical barrier (a painted bike lane is not a buffer) between pedestrians and
multi-ton vehicles. I currently don't know a single person who prizes their life and would
actually walk along Monroe (save a few areas closer to midtown) versus taking a car than
perhaps ambitious college students without cars, hardcore environmentalists/cyclists, or as
the document states "vulnerable road users". I certainly wouldn't say this road is safe for
children either. This is an abject policy failure -- pedestrian and cycling infrastructure SHOULD
be able to be depended upon by every age and class of society, not just vulnerable road users
who have no other option.

In that vein, how will the CRTPA ensure that "The potential safety improvements will increase
the multimodal network connectivity and accessibility along the corridor and between activity
centers"? Currently I would frankly say that there is no existing true multi-modal network (i.e.,
99% of users are not going to take the bus, a bike, or walk down Monroe unless they have no
choice) and yet we simply cannot afford to maintain the status quo of car dependency from
both an environmental and public health standpoint. It is all the more reason to expand the
very encouraging, yet piecemeal approach presented in this plan – a network cannot be a
network if it is fragmented and safe only in select areas. Please prioritize grade separated
infrastructure (i.e. bollards, physical buffer lanes of parked cars, or trees etc.), tree canopies
for pedestrians and cyclists and road diets continuously along the entire corridor to actually
create this multimodal network promised. Please let the public of Tallahassee know what we
need to do to assist you with "going the mile" to make these improvements. There are many
of us who truly and deeply want to see our roads be reclaimed for the people. I appreciate
your time and thank you very much for your consideration.

ATTACHMENT 3

mailto:l.cherie@live.com
mailto:Greg.Slay@talgov.com
mailto:John.Kostrzewa@talgov.com
mailto:Greg.Burke@talgov.com
mailto:Suzanne.Lex@talgov.com
mailto:Yulonda.Mitchell@talgov.com


ATTACHMENT 4



Ag e n d a

P ro je c t  P u rp o se
St u d y Are a  a n d  Co n d it io n s
Ta sk  Ove rvie w
P o t e n t ia l Im p ro ve m e n t s  a n d  Co s t s

22



P u rp o s e

33

Im p ro ve  sa fe t y a lo n g  t h e  No rt h  Mo n ro e  St re e t  c o rrid o r fro m  
Th a rp e  St re e t  t o  Ca p it a l Circ le  No rt h w e s t . 

Me t h o d s :
• Id e n t ifie d  im p le m e n t a b le  s t ra t e g ie s  t o  im p ro ve  sa fe t y 
• Ap p lie d  fo r fe d e ra l fu n d in g  t h ro u g h  t h e  Sa fe  St re e t s  fo r All 

(SS4 A) Im p le m e n t a t io n  g ra n t  o p p o rt u n it y



St u d y  Are a  a n d  
Co n d it io n s

• Co rrid o r w a s  id e n t ifie d  in  t h e  
Sa fe  St re e t s  a n d  Ro a d s  fo r All 
Sa fe t y Ac t io n  P la n
‐ P a rt  o f t h e  VRU HIN 

• His t o ric a lly d isa d va n t a g e d  
p o p u la t io n s

• P o p u la t io n  o f u n h o u se d  
in d ivid u a ls  in  t h e  a re a

• Ad ja c e n t  b u s in e sse s  a n d  
h o m e s  

• Hig h  c ra sh  ra t e s  a t  se le c t  
lo c a t io n s

44



Ta s k  Ove rv ie w

• Re vie w  o f P re vio u s  Effo rt s
• Sa fe t y An a lys is
• W a lk in g  Sa fe t y Au d it
• Ca m e ra  Co u n t  An a lys is
• Gra n t  De ve lo p m e n t
• P o t e n t ia l Im p ro ve m e n t s
• P la n n in g  Le ve l Co s t s

55



P re v io u s  Effo r t s

• Ag e n c y Effo rt s  
‐ FDOT Me d ia n  m o d ific a t io n  (o n g o in g )

‐ FDOT Co m p le t e d  (20 23) a n d  p la n n e d  re su rfa c in g  (20 27)

‐ Re c e n t  s ig n a liza t io n  (Ta lp e c o  Rd .) - FDOT/CRTP A

‐ Sid e w a lk  im p le m e n t a t io n  Jo h n  Kn o x t o  La ke  Sh o re  - CRTP A/FDOT

‐ Mid  b lo c k  c ro ss in g  (La ke  Ella ) - CRTP A/FDOT

‐ N Mo n ro e  Co rrid o r Ac t io n  a n d  Ma n a g e m e n t  P la n  - TLCP D

‐ Cit ize n s ’ N Mo n ro e  Co rrid o r Ta sk  Fo rc e  - TLCP D

‐ Sa fe  Ro u t e s  t o  Sc h o o l – Le o n  Co u n t y
‐ Sid e w a lks  a t  Ca n o p y Oa ks  Ele m ., a n d  Sc h o o l o f Ma t h  a n d  Sc ie n c e s

‐ Ou t re a c h  a n d  c h a re t t e s  c o m p le t e d  la t e  20 23 - TLCP D

66



Sa fe t y  An a lys is  (20 17 -20 23)

7

• Sig n ific a n t  c lu s t e rin g  so u t h  o f I-10  
a n d  a t  in t e rse c t io n s

• 3,196  c ra sh e s  w it h in  s t u d y lim it s
• Re a r-e n d  c ra sh e s  m o s t  c o m m o n  

(4 5%)
• 14  c ra sh  fa t a lit ie s , 4 1 in c a p a c it a t in g  

in ju rie s
• 21 b ic yc le  c ra sh e s  (1 fa t a l), 54  p e d  

c ra sh e s  (8  fa t a l)
Sig n ifica n t  P e d e s t ria n  Cra sh  Da t a



Sa fe t y  An a lys is  (20 17 -20 23)

8

Cu rre n t  An g le  Cra sh  a n d  Re a r En d  Clu s t e rin g  a t  Silve r 
Slip p e r La n e

Cra sh  Clu s t e rin g  Ne a r Alle n  Ro a d  In t e rse c t io n



Sa fe t y  An a lys is

9

• Cra sh  ra t e s  in d ic a t e d  a re a s  
e xc e e d in g  Flo rid a  a ve ra g e s

• Ho t sp o t s  id e n t ifie d  t o  in fo rm  
c a m e ra  p la c e m e n t

• P o t e n t ia l im p ro ve m e n t s  
id e n t ifie d  b a se d  o n  c ra sh  
t yp e , lo c a t io n , a n d  se ve rit y



W a lk in g  Sa fe t y  Au d it  (Ma rc h  15 t h , 20 24 )

10

• Co n firm  c o rrid o r c o n d it io n s  a n d  
id e n t ify a d d it io n a l a re a s  o f 
c o n c e rn

• P la n n e rs , e n g in e e rs , la w  
e n fo rc e m e n t , a n d  Le o n  Co u n t y 
e le c t e d  o ffic ia ls

Sa fe t y Au d it  Te a m



W a lk in g  Sa fe t y  Au d it  Fin d in g s

11

Tra n s it  St o p  w it h  Lim it e d  P e d e s t ria n  Ac c e ssCro ssw a lk  W it h o u t  Hig h  Em p h a sis  Ma rk in g s



W a lk in g  Sa fe t y  Au d it  Fin d in g s

12

Da m a g e d /Miss in g  P e d e s t ria n  Sa fe t y Fe a t u re s  (No  Ra ilin g )Da m a g e d /Miss in g  De t e c t a b le  
W a rn in g  Su rfa c e



Bic yc lis t  a n d  P e d e s t ria n  P a t h in g

Ca m e ra  Co u n t  An a lys is

13

• Ca m e ra s  lo c a t e d  a t  
in t e rse c t io n s  o f N 
Mo n ro e  St re e t  a n d :
‐ Se ss io n s  Ro a d
‐ La ke sh o re  Drive
‐ Be t w e e n  La ke sh o re  Drive  

a n d  Sh a re r Ro a d  (2 
Mid b lo c k  Lo c a t io n s )

‐ Sh a re r Ro a d
‐ Jo h n  Kn o x Ro a d
‐ Th a rp e  St re e t



Ca m e ra  Co u n t  An a lys is

14

Se ss io n s  Ro a d  P e d e s t ria n  a n d  Bike  P a t h in g La ke sh o re  Drive  P e d e s t ria n  a n d  Bike  P a t h in g



Ca m e ra  Co u n t  An a lys is

15

La ke sh o re  Drive  a n d  Sh a re r Ro a d  Mid b lo ck  N 
P e d e s t ria n  a n d  Bike  P a t h in g

Th a rp e  St re e t  P e d e s t ria n  a n d  Bike  P a t h in g



Ca m e ra  Co u n t  An a lys is

16

7 lo c a t io n s  fro m  Th a rp e  
St re e t  t o  Se ss io n s  Ro a d
Mo t o rize d  a n d  No n -
m o t o rize d  c o u n t s

W e e kd a y Ca m e ra  Co u n t
Cyc lis t 4 6
P e d e st ria n 138
All 18 4
W e e ke n d
Cyc lis t 30
P e d e st ria n 137
All 167

Th a rp e  St re e t

Sh a re r Ro a d  t o  La ke sh o re  (Mid b lo c k)
W e e kd a y Ca m e ra  Co u n t
Cyc lis t 16
P e d e st ria n 226
All 24 2
W e e ke n d
Cyc lis t 35
P e d e st ria n 24 3
All 278

W e e kd a y Ca m e ra  Co u n t
Cyc lis t 14
P e d e st ria n 65
All 79
W e e ke n d
Cyc lis t 7
P e d e st ria n 62
All 69

Se ss io n s  Ro a d



Ne a r  Mis s  An a lys is

17

In c id e n t s  w h e re  
p e d e s t ria n s  o r b ic yc lis t s  
c a m e  in t o  c lo se  
p ro xim it y w it h  ve h ic le s

P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g  b e t w e e n  Tra ffic  a t  Sh a re r Ro a d  t o  
La ke sh o re  Dr (N) 



Ne a r  Mis s  An a lys is

18

Se ss io n s  Rd La ke sh o re  Mid b lo c k  S

Sh a re r RdLa ke sh o re  Mid b lo c k  N



Gra n t  De ve lo p m e n t

19

• Gra n t  su b m it t e d  u n d e r t h e  
20 24  SS4 A Im p le m e n t a t io n  
Gra n t  P ro g ra m

• In  c o o rd in a t io n  w it h  FDOT, 
BP IA h a s  c o m m it t e d  t o  
p ro vid in g  lo c a l m a t c h  a n d  
im p le m e n t in g  t h e  sa fe t y 
im p ro ve m e n t s  u p o n  
su c c e ss fu l a w a rd

• $21 m illion  re q u e st e d :
o $16.8  m illion  fe d e ra l re q u e st
o $4 .2 m illion  lo ca l m a t ch

Sc h o o l Bu s  Dro p  Off

P a rt ia l Aw a rd !
• To t a l $24 8 ,273
o $198 ,618  Fe d e ra l Fu n d s
o $4 9,655 lo ca l m a t ch



20

P o t e n t ia l Im p ro ve m e n t s

Dire c t io n a l Me d ia n  Op e n in g

P e d e s t ria n  Fe n c in gHe a vy P e d e s t ria n  Sig n a g e

Ne a r P e rp e n d ic u la r 
Rig h t  Tu rn

Co n t ro lle d  P e d e s t ria n  
Cro ss in g

So u rce (s ): Go o g le  Ea rt h  / Ma p s



21

P o t e n t ia l Im p ro ve m e n t s  - In t e rs e c t io n s
In t e rse c t ion s # P o t e n t ia l Im p rove m e n t (s)

Th a rp e  St re e t 1 Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s , LP I, Lig h t in g
No rt h w o od  Bo u le va rd 2 LP I, Lig h t in g
N MLK J r. Bo u le va rd /E 

Bra d fo rd  Ro a d 3 HFST, LP I, Rig h t  Tu rn  Mo d ific a t io n , Sh ift  Tra ffic  Co n t ro l Bo x, Re m o ve /Re lo c a t e  Tra n s it  St o p

J o h n  Kn o x Ro a d /Mon t ic e llo  
Drive 4 Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s , LP I, Re p la c e  Tru n c a t e d  Do m e s

Alle n  Ro a d 5 Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s , LP I, Rig h t  Tu rn  Mo d ific a t io n , P e d  Fe n c in g

Sh a re r Ro a d 6 Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s , LP I, Ad d  Cro ssw a lk , P e d  Fe n c in g , Lig h t in g

La ke sh o re  Drive 7 Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s , LP I, P e d  Fe n c in g , Rig h t  Tu rn  Mo d ific a t io n

Ca lla w a y Ro a d /Me g in n is  Arm  
Ro a d 8 HFST, Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s , LP I, P e d  Fe n c in g , Rig h t  Tu rn  Mo d ific a t io n

I-10  Ea s tb o u n d  Off-Ra m p 9 HFST, RRFB, No  U t u rn , P e d  Fe n c in g , Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s
I-10  W e stb ou n d  Off-Ra m p 10 HFST, RRFB, P e d  Sig n a g e , P e d  Fe n c in g , Bla n k  Ou t  Sig n , Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s

Se ssion s Ro a d 11 LP I/HFST Re a lig n  t o  P e rp e n d ic u la r, Me d ia n  Re fu g e , Re p la c e  Tru n c a t e d  Do m e s , Sid e w a lk  Lo c a t io n  Sig n , 
Cro ssw a lk  Im p ro ve m e n t s , P e d  Fe n c in g

Ta lp e co  Ro a d 12 Ad d  Cro ssw a lk
Cro w d e r Ro a d /Fre d  Ge o rg e  

Ro a d 13 LP I, Me d ia n  Re fu g e , P e d  Ra ilin g  Re p la c e m e n t , Mo d ific a t io n  o f Ra ilin g  fo r ADA, P e d  Sig n a l in  Is la n d

Fa u lk Drive /P e rkin s  Ro a d 14 -
Old  Ba in b rid g e  Ro a d /Ca p it a l 

Circ le  NW 15 Offse t  NB & SB le ft -t u rn  la n e s  fo r b e t t e r vis ib ilit y, Bla n k  Ou t  Sig n



22

Se g m e n t s # P o t e n t ia l Im p rove m e n t (s)

Fro m  Th a rp e  St re e t  t o  No rt h w o od  Bo u le va rd 1.5 Co n t ro lle d  P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g
Fro m  No rt h w oo d  Bo u le va rd  t o  N MLK J r. Bo u le va rd /E Bra d fo rd  

Ro a d 2.5 -

Fro m  N MLK J r. Bo u le va rd /E Bra d fo rd  Ro a d  t o  J o h n  Kn o x 
Ro a d /Mo n t ic e llo  Drive 3.5 Co n t ro lle d  P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g , Re c o n fig u re  Silve r Slip p e r Ac c e ss

Fro m  J o h n  Kn o x Ro a d /Mo n t ic e llo  Drive  t o  Alle n  Ro a d 4 .5 Ra ise d  Me d ia n , Dire c t io n a l Me d ia n  Op e n in g , P e d  Fe n c in g  Tu rn  La n e  Mo d ific a t io n

Fro m  Alle n  Ro a d  t o  Sh a re r Ro a d 5.5 Co n t ro lle d  P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g , P e d  Fe n c in g , Dire c t io n a l Me d ia n  Op e n in g

Fro m  Sh a re r Ro a d  t o  La ke sh ore  Drive 6 .5 Co n t ro lle d  P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g , P e d  Fe n c in g , Dire c t io n a l Me d ia n  Op e n in g

Fro m  La ke sh ore  Drive  t o  Ca lla w a y Ro a d /Me g in n is  Arm  Ro a d 7.5 P e d  Fe n c in g
Fro m  Ca lla w a y Ro a d /Me g in n is  Arm  Ro a d  t o  I-10  Ea s tb o u n d  Off-

Ra m p 8 .5 HFST, P e d  Sig n a g e , P e d  Fe n c in g

Fro m  I-10  Ea s tb ou n d  Off-Ra m p  t o  I-10  W e stb o u n d  Off-Ra m p 9 .5 HFST, P e d  Ba rrie r o n  Brid g e

Fro m  I-10  W e st b ou n d  Off-Ra m p  t o  Se ssion s Ro a d 10 .5 P e d  Fe n c in g

Fro m  Se ssion s Ro a d  t o  Ta lp e c o  Ro a d 11.5 Lig h t in g  a t  m e d ia n  o p e n in g s , P e d  Fe n c in g , Co n t ro lle d  P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g , 
Dire c t io n a l Me d ia n  Op e n in g

Fro m  Ta lp e co  Ro a d  t o  Cro w d e r Ro a d /Fre d  Ge o rg e  Ro a d 12.5 Lig h t in g  a t  Me d ia n  Op e n in g s , Co n t ro lle d  P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g s , Dire c t io n a l Me d ia n  
Op e n in g

Fro m  Cro w d e r Ro a d /Fre d  Ge o rg e  Ro a d  t o  Fa u lk Drive /P e rk in s  
Ro a d 13.5 Lig h t in g  a t  Me d ia n  Op e n in g s

Fro m  Fa u lk  Drive /P e rkin s  Ro a d  t o  Old  Ba in b rid g e  Ro a d /Ca p it a l 
Circ le  NW 14 .5 Lig h t in g  a t  Me d ia n  Op e n in g s

P o t e n t ia l Im p ro ve m e n t s  - Se g m e n t s

In d ic a t e s  Co n t ro lle d  P e d  Cro ss in g  Lo c a t io n



Silver Slip
p

er Ln

No rt h  MLK J r. Bo u le va rd  a n d  Ea s t  Bra d fo rd  Ro a d  t h ro u g h  J o h n  Kn o x Ro a d  a n d  Mo n t ice llo  
Drive  (In t e rse c t io n s  3-4 )La ke sh o re  Drive  t h ro u g h  Ca lla w a y Ro a d  a n d  Me g in n is  Arm  Rd  (In t e rse c t io n s  7-8 )Alle n  Ro a d  t h ro u g h  Sh a re r Ro a d  (In t e rse c t io n s  5-6 )I-10  Ea s t b o u n d  Off-Ra m p  t h ro u g h  I-10  W e s t b o u n d  Off-Ra m p  (In t e rse c t io n s  9 -10 )

24

P o t e n t ia l Im p ro ve m e n t s
Se ss io n s  Ro a d  (In t e rse c t io n  11)

Joh
n

 K
n

ox R
d

M
on

ticello D
r



P la n n in g  Le ve l Co s t s

25

• Est im a t e s  b a se d  o n  le n g t h , 
s ize , t yp e  o f im p ro ve m e n t s  
• Co st s  d e ve lo p e d  u s in g  
e s t im a t e d  c o n s t ru c t io n  va lu e s  
w it h  a d d it io n a l 25% c o n t in g e n c y

So u rc e : FDOT His t o ric a l It e m  Ave ra g e  Co s t  Re p o rt s ; Kn o w n  Co s t s

To t a l Es t im a t e d  Co st s : 
$29,112,78 2

In t e rse c t io n  a n d  
Se g m e n t  # Lo c a t ion  /  Ac t ivit y Es t im a t e d  P ro je c t  Co s t

-- To t a l Es t im a t e d  Co s t s $           29 ,112,782

1 Th a rp e  St re e t  In t e rse c t ion $                69 ,0 60

1.5 P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g  Be t w e e n  Th a rp e  St  a n d  No rt h w o o d  Blvd $              34 7,28 6

2 No rt h w o o d  Blvd  In t e rse c t ion $               129 ,223

2.5 No rt h w o o d  Blvd  t o  N MLK J r Blvd N/A

3 N MLK J r Blvd  In t e rse c t io n $             4 70 ,8 8 8

3.5 P e d e s t ria n  Cro ss in g  Be t w e e n  N MLK J r Blvd  a n d  J o h n  Kn o x Rd $              34 7,28 6

3.5 Rig h t  in  Rig h t  Ou t  a n d  P e d e s t ria n  Sig n a g e  a t  Silve r Slip p e r La n e $              24 5,0 28

4 J o h n  Kn o x Rd  In t e rse c t ion $                 15,4 36

4 .5 Cro ss in g s  a n d  Me d ia n  Im p ro ve m e n t s  Be t w e e n  J o h n  Kn o x Rd  An d  Alle n  Rd $               165,4 19

5 Alle n  Rd  In t e rse c t ion $               291,313

5.5 Me d ia n  Im p ro ve m e n t s  a n d  Mid b lo c k  Cro ss in g s  b e t w e e n  Alle n  Rd  a n d  Sh a re r Rd $               58 5,311

6 Sh a re r Rd  In t e rse c t ion $               199 ,521

6 .5 Cro ss in g s  a n d  Me d ia n  Im p ro ve m e n t s  b e t w e e n  Sh a re r Rd  a n d  La ke sh o re  Dr $             54 2,966

7 La ke sh o re  Dr In t e rse c t ion $             278 ,662

7 .5 La ke sh o re  Dr t o  Ca lla w a y Rd $                31,326

8 Ca lla w a y Rd  In t e rse c t ion $            1,8 61,271

8 .5 Sa fe t y Im p ro ve m e n t s  b e t w e e n  Ca lla w a y Rd  a n d  I-10 $            290 ,230

9 Ea s t b o u n d  I-10  Ra m p  In t e rse c t ion $            273,60 5

9 -10 .5 Re c t a n g u la r Ra p id  Fla sh in g  Be a c o n  In s t a lla t io n $            339 ,755

10 W e st b o u n d  I-10  Ra m p $             28 1,915

10 .5 Sa fe t y Im p ro ve m e n t s  b e t w e e n  I-10  a n d  Se ss io n s  Rd $            20 6 ,153

11 Se ss io n s  Rd  In t e rse c t ion $            659 ,164

11.5 Sa fe t y Im p ro ve m e n t s  b e t w e e n  Se ss io n s  Rd  a n d  Ta lp e c o  Rd $             8 52,161

12 Ta lp e c o  Rd  In t e rse c t io n $             4 8 ,4 90

12.5 Sa fe t y Im p ro ve m e n t s  b e t w e e n  Ta lp e c o  Rd  a n d  Fre d  Ge o rg e  Rd $          1,225,232

13 Fre d  Ge o rg e  Rd  In t e rse c t ion $             112,992

13.5 Sa fe t y Im p ro ve m e n t s  Be t w e e n  Fre d  Ge o rg e  Ro a d  a n d  P e rk in s  Ro a d $          1,0 13,158

14 P e rk in s  Ro a d  In t e rse c t ion N/A

14 .5 Sa fe t y Im p ro ve m e n t s  Be t w e e n  P e rk in s  Ro a d  a n d  CC NW Ga p  Are a  Co s t s

15 Ca p it a l Circ le  NW  In t e rse c t ion $       2,528 ,4 4 0

Th ro u g h ou t Bic yc le  a n d  P e d e s t ria n  Fa c ilit y Ga p  Are a s  $      15,70 1,4 93



Th a n k  Yo u !
Qu e s t io n s?

26



September 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 9 A 

FUTURE MEETINGS 

TYPE OF ITEM: CRTPA Information 

Meeting Date Meeting Type Location 

October 15 (Tuesday) Board Meeting Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers, 
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm – 4:00 pm  

November 25 (Monday) Board Meeting Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers, 
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm – 4:00 pm  

December 17 (Tuesday) Board Meeting Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers, 
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm – 4:00 pm  



September 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 9 B 

  COMMITTEE ACTIONS 
 (CITIZEN’S MULTIMODAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE & 

 TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE)

TYPE OF ITEM: CRTPA Information 

STATEMENT OF ISSUE 

This item provides information on the activities of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and the 
Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC) to the Capital Region Transportation Planning 
Agency (CRTPA). 

TAC and CMAC:    The committees each met on September 3, 2024, and acted on the following: 

 Minutes of the June 4,2024, Meeting
• TAC Action:  Approved.
• CMAC Action:  Approved.

 North Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan
• TAC Action:  Recommended Approval.
• CMAC Action:  Recommended Approval.

 CRTPA Year 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) Kickoff
• TAC Action:  This item was informational only.  No action.
• CMAC Action:  This item was informational only.  No action.



With the beginning of the second year of the UPWP contract, any remaining funds from the previous year are 
rolled into the current year budget.  Therefore, the utilization of some line items may reflect a decrease from 
the previous report.   

A status report on the January through March 2024, Unified Planning Work Program budget utilization is 
provided for the following: 

• CRTPA Budget Report PL Funds (Attachment 1)
• CRTPA Budget Report SU Funds (Attachment 2)

TYPE OF ITEM: Information 

 AGENDA ITEM 9C 

UTILIZATION REPORT 

JANUARY THROUGH MARCH 2024 

September 16, 2024 



Unified Planning Work Program - 
Fiscal Years 2022/23-2023/24

 FPID# 439323-4-14-01 

Invoice #: G2782 (PL-7)  Invoice Period:  11/21/23 - 3/31/24 

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND 
DESCRIPTION

 REMAINDER FY 23 +       FY 2024 
FHWA (PL) Budgeted Amount

 FY 2024 FHWA (PL)
Previous Payments 

 2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost  

 2023/2024 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance 

 PL Budget Utilization
9-16-2024 

Salaries and Fringe $292,956.00 $190,998.90 $89,090.85 $12,866.26 95.61%
Sub Total: $292,956.00 $190,998.90 $89,090.85 $12,866.26

Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1.7 Professional Services WCOT $18,056.25 $825.00 $275.00 $16,956.25 6.09%
1.12 Professional Services Audit $20,500.00 $20,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%
1.16 Professional Services Legal $21,574.50 $21,574.50 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%
Sub Total: $60,130.75 $42,899.50 $275.00 $16,956.25

Travel/Training $10,778.57 $4,414.64 $0.00 $6,363.93 40.96%
Sub Total: $10,778.57 $4,414.64 $0.00 $6,363.93

Operational Expenses 
(Tel/Ins/Ads/Postage/Profess Fees)

$52,608.40 $21,403.43 $423.55 $30,781.42 41.49%

Computer Software $2,276.37 $1,200.00 0 $1,076.37 52.72%
Staff Services $89,742.40 $37,296.43 $18,535.08 $33,910.89 62.21%
Sub Total: $144,627.17 $59,899.86 $18,958.63 $65,768.68

Office Supplies $9,829.97 $204.62 $124.93 $9,500.42 3.35%
Computer Equipment $0.07 $0.00 $0.00 $0.07 0.00%
Sub Total: $9,830.04 $204.62 $124.93 $9,500.49
Total: $518,322.53 $298,417.52 $108,449.41 $111,455.61

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND 
DESCRIPTION

 REMAINDER FY 23 +       FY 2024 
FHWA (PL) Budgeted Amount

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

 PL Budget Utilization
9-16-2024 

Salaries and Fringe $6,987.00 $6,987.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%
Sub Total: $6,987.00 $6,987.00 $0.00 $0.00

Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Transportation Data Mangement
$40,197.33

$32,500.00 $0.00 $7,697.33 80.85%

Sub Total: $40,197.33 $32,500.00 $0.00 $7,697.33
Total: $47,184.33 $39,487.00 $0.00 $7,697.33

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND 
DESCRIPTION

 REMAINDER FY 23 +       FY 2024 
FHWA (PL) Budgeted Amount

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

 PL Budget Utilization
9-16-2024 

Salaries and Fringe $66,593.40 $66,593.40 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%
Sub Total: $66,593.40 $66,593.40 $0.00 $0.00

Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total: $66,593.40 $66,593.40 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND 
DESCRIPTION

 REMAINDER FY 23 +       FY 2024 
FHWA (PL) Budgeted Amount

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

 PL Budget Utilization
9-16-2024 

Salaries and Fringe $74,209.66 $23,783.77 $8,790.05 $41,635.84 43.89%
Sub Total: $74,209.66 $23,783.77 $8,790.05 $41,635.84

Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TIP Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total: $74,209.66 $23,783.77 $8,790.05 $41,635.84

Task 4.0 - Short-Range Planning

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Other Direct Expenses

Page 1 of 2

Direct Expenses

Supplies and Equipment

Task 2.0 - Data Collection

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Direct Expense

Task 3.0 - Long Range Planning

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Travel/Training

Task 1.0 - Administration

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

ATTACHMENT 1



Unified Planning Work Program - 
Fiscal Years 2022/23-2023/24

FPID# 439323-4-14-01

Invoice #: G2782 (PL-7) Invoice Period:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND 
DESCRIPTION

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 
(PL) Budgeted Amount

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

 PL Budget Utilization
9-16-2024

Salaries and Fringe $126,530.49 $36,521.79 $10,055.80 $79,952.90 36.81%
Sub Total: $126,530.49 $36,521.79 $10,055.80 $79,952.90

 5.0 Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
 5.7 Tallahassee to Havana Trail 
Feasibility Study

$1,014.75 $0.00 $0.00 $1,014.75 0.00%

 5.8 SR267 Bloxham Cutoff Trail 
Feasibility Study

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

5.20 Congestion Management Plan 
Update 

$19,959.31 $0.00 $1,664.88 $18,294.43 8.34%

5.22 CMP Implement. Studies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
5.26 Other Mobility Studies TBD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Sub Total: $20,974.06 $0.00 $1,664.88 $19,309.18
Total: $147,504.55 $36,521.79 $11,720.68 $99,262.08

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND 
DESCRIPTION

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 
(PL) Budgeted Amount

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

 PL Budget Utilization
9-16-2024

Salaries and Fringe $81,789.39 $10,409.76 $7,249.41 $64,130.22 21.59%
Sub Total: $81,789.39 $10,409.76 $7,249.41 $64,130.22

Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total: $81,789.39 $10,409.76 $7,249.41 $64,130.22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND 
DESCRIPTION

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 
(PL) Budgeted Amount

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

 PL Budget Utilization
9-16-2024

Salaries and Fringe $148,814.26 $40,848.16 $24,193.92 $83,772.18 43.71%
Sub Total: $148,814.26 $40,848.16 $24,193.92 $83,772.18

7.0 Consultant Support Task 7 
Activities

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

7.1 Telecommute Study $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
7.2 Regional Freight Study $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
7.3 Other Mobility Studies (TBD)

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

7.4 SS4A Safety Action Plan $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
7.5 SS4A Safety Action Plan High 
Injury Network (HIN) Safety Studies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

7.5.1 SS4A HIN North Monroe 
Street

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total: $148,814.26 $40,848.16 $24,193.92 $83,772.18
Rounding Adjustment $0.02

G 2782 PL-7
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURE 

DETAIL :
$1,084,418.12 $516,061.40 $160,403.45 $407,953.26 $407,953.25

Task 6.0 - Public Involvement

Contract# G2782 (PL FUNDS)

11/21/23 - 3/31/24
Task 5.0 - Mobility Planning

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Page 2 of 2

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Task 7.0 - Special Projects

Personnel Services

Consultant Services



FPID# 439323-4-14-02
Invoice #: G2782 (SU-7) Invoice Period:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION
Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 

(SU) Budgeted Amount
FY 2024 FHWA (SU)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (SU)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (SU)
Remaining Balance

 SU Budget Utilization     
4/16/24 

Salaries and Fringe $37,494.72 $0.00 $0.00 $37,494.72 0%
Sub Total: $37,494.72 $0.00 $0.00 $37,494.72

Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
1.7 Professional Services WCOT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
1.12 Professional Services Audit $36,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 0%
1.16 Professional Services Legal $19,500.00 $689.00 $13,357.50 $5,453.50 72%

Sub Total: $55,500.00 $689.00 $13,357.50 $41,453.50

Travel/Training $18,000.00 $0.00 $1,844.42 $16,155.58 10%
Sub Total: $18,000.00 $0.00 $1,844.42 $16,155.58

Operational Expenses $58,690.00 $0.00 $0.00 $58,690.00 0%
Computer Software $5,000.00 $0.00 $1,523.63 $3,476.37 30%
Staff Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

Sub Total: $63,690.00 $0.00 $1,523.63 $62,166.37

Computer Equipment $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 0%
Sub Total: $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00

Total: $178,684.72 $689.00 $16,725.55 $161,270.17

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION
Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 

(SU) Budgeted Amount
FY 2024 FHWA (SU)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (SU)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (SU)
Remaining Balance

SU Budget Utilization     
4/16/24

Salaries and Fringe $47,184.69 $28,691.93 $10,974.06 $7,518.69 84%
Sub Total: $47,184.69 $28,691.93 $10,974.06 $7,518.69

Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2.7 Transportation Data Management $33,041.67 $32,500.00 $0.00 $541.67 98%
Sub Total: $33,041.67 $32,500.00 $0.00 $541.67

Total: $80,226.36 $61,191.93 $10,974.06 $8,060.36

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION
Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 

(SU) Budgeted Amount
FY 2024 FHWA (SU)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (SU)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (SU)
Remaining Balance

SU Budget Utilization     
4/16/24

Salaries and Fringe $55,558.68 $17,589.35 $32,613.28 $5,356.05 90%
Sub Total: $55,558.68 $17,589.35 $32,613.28 $5,356.05

Contract/Consultant Services $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 0%
Long-Range Transportation Plan  $300,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300,000.00 0%

Sub Total: $330,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $330,000.00
Total: $385,558.68 $17,589.35 $32,613.28 $335,356.05

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION
Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 

(SU) Budgeted Amount
FY 2024 FHWA (SU)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (SU)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (SU)
Remaining Balance

SU Budget Utilization     
4/16/24

Salaries and Fringe $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Contract/Consultant Services $34,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,500.00 0%
Sub Total: $34,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,500.00

TIP Software $14,155.00 $0.00 $12,000.50 $2,154.50 85%
Sub Total: $14,155.00 $0.00 $12,000.50 $2,154.50

Total: $48,655.00 $0.00 $12,000.50 $36,654.50

Consultant Services

Contract# G2782 (SU FUNDS)
Unified Planning Work Program - Fiscal Years 2022/23-2023/24

10/01/23- 3/31/2024
Task 1.0 - Administration

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Travel/Training

Direct Expenses

Supplies and Equipment

Task 2.0 - Data Collection

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Direct Expenses

Task 3.0 - Long Range Planning

Personnel Services

Task 4.0 - Short-Range Planning

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Other Direct Expenses

Page 1 of 2

ATTACHMENT 2 



Unified Planning Work Program - Fiscal Years FPID# 439323-4-14-02
Invoice #: G2782 (SU-7) Invoice Period:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION
Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 

(SU) Budgeted Amount
FY 2024 FHWA (SU)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (SU)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (SU)
Remaining Balance

SU Budget Utilization     
4/16/24

Salaries and Fringe $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5.0  Consultant Support Task 5 Activities $21,666.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,666.00 0%
5.7  Tallahassee Havana Trail Feasibilty Study $2,178.25 $0.00 $0.00 $2,178.25 0%
5.7.1  Tallahassee Havana Trail Feasibilty Study  

 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

5.8 SR 267 Bloxham Cutoff Trail Feasibility Study $5,939.99 $5,196.75 $743.23 $0.01
5.8.1 SR 267 Bloxham Cutoff Trail Feasibility Study 

 
$2,496.37 $2,495.70 $0.00 $0.67 100%

5.20 Congestion Management Plan Update $10,721.00 $7,546.11 $0.00 $3,174.89 70%
5.20 Congestion Management Plan 

 
$250,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250,000.00 0%

5.26 Other Mobility Studies (TBD) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $293,001.61 $15,238.56 $743.23 $277,019.82

Total: $293,001.61 $15,238.56 $743.23 $277,019.82

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION
Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 

(SU) Budgeted Amount
FY 2024 FHWA (SU)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (SU)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (SU)
Remaining Balance

SU Budget Utilization     
4/16/24

Salaries and Fringe $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Contract/Consultant Services $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 0%
Sub Total: $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

Total: $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION
Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA 

(SU) Budgeted Amount
FY 2024 FHWA (SU)
Previous Payments

2024 FHWA (SU)
Current Cost 

2023/2024 FHWA (SU)
Remaining Balance

SU Budget Utilization     
4/16/24

Salaries and Fringe $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

7.0 Consultant Support Task 7 Activities $24,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,000.00 0%
7.1 Telecommute Study $81,000.00 $40,500.00 $6,075.00 $34,425.00 58%
7.2 Regional Freight Study $166,000.00 $73,500.00 $31,500.00 $61,000.00 63%
7.3 Other Mobility Studies (TBD) $349,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $349,250.00 0%
7.4 SS4A Safety Action Plan $91,812.20 $62,447.20 $0.00 $29,365.00 68%
7.5 SS4A Safety Action Plan High Injury Network 

 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

7.5.1 SS4A HIN North Monroe Street $208,523.00 $0.00 $24,876.00 $183,647.00 12%
7.6 Safe Routes to School Report Update $500,000.00 $0.00 $79,113.48 $420,886.52 16%
7.7 Thomasville Rd. Safety abd Access Study $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 0%

Sub Total: $1,520,585.20 $176,447.20 $141,564.48 $1,202,573.52
Total: $1,520,585.20 $176,447.20 $141,564.48 $1,202,573.52 $1,202,573.52

G2782 SU-7
    

$2,536,711.57 $271,156.04 $214,621.10 $2,050,934.43 2,050,934.43                   
* G2782 SU-7

 GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURE DETAIL :
$2,536,711.57 $271,156.04 $214,621.10 $2,050,934.43

Personnel Services

Contract# G2782 (SU FUNDS)

10/01/23- 3/31/2024
Task 5.0 - Mobility Planning

Consultant Services

Task 6.0 - Public Involvement

Personnel Services

Consultant Services

Task 7.0 - Special Projects

Personnel Services

Consultant Services



September 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 9 D   

CORRESP
 
ONDENCE 

TYPE OF ITEM: Information 

The following correspondence has been sent or received by the CRTPA: 

• Correspondence from Governor DeSantis to the CRTPA related to the approval of the CRTPA’s
apportionment plan, dated August 8, 2024 (Attachment 1).

• Correspondence from a citizen to the CRTPA related to speeding near Raa Middle School,
dated August 15, 2024 (Attachment 2).



ATTACHMENT 1



From: Burke, Greg
To: chelseaquynn@proton.me
Subject: August 15 Letter to the CRTPA
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2024 2:36:50 PM

Good afternoon, Ms. Joslin.  Thank you for reaching out to the Capital Region Transportation
Planning Agency (CRTPA) regarding speeding in the vicinity of Raa Middle School.  As you note,
speeding in school zones puts the safety of children and others at serious risk.

One aspect related to speeding is traffic enforcement.  Relatedly, the City of Tallahassee (COT) is
initiating a "School Speed Zone Enforcement" program which involves the installation of speed
detection cameras in school zones, including Raa Middle School.  Most recent information from the
COT identifies that the program is anticipated to begin prior to the end of the school year. 

Additionally, the CRTPA is conducting a study (“Take the Safe Route – Safe Access to School Study”)
which aims to improve safety for students walking or biking to school. The study includes the
identification of schools with a demonstrated need for safety and infrastructure improvements for
students walking and biking to schools. Raa Middle School is one of the schools that has been
identified and will be included in the study’s identification of nearby walking and biking
improvements to enhance student safety.

Finally, we have forwarded your comments related to speeding and the placement of signage to the
City of Tallahassee.

Thank you again for reaching out to the CRTPA.

Sincerely,

Greg T. Burke, AICP
Planning Manager

Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency 
850/891.8626 
www.crtpa.org

ATTACHMENT 2

mailto:Greg.Burke@talgov.com
mailto:chelseaquynn@proton.me
https://www.tallahassee.com/story/news/local/2024/08/13/tpd-school-speed-zone-program-to-roll-out-later-in-the-school-year-leon-county-schools/74779603007/
https://crtpa.org/projects/take-the-safe-route-safe-access-to-school-study/
http://www.crtpa.org/





	Agenda - September 16
	Item 4A - Minutes
	Attach 1 - June 2024 Minutes

	Item 4B - Director's Evaluation
	Attach 1 -3 - Executive Director’s Evaluations for 2024

	Item 4C - Director's Timesheets
	Attach 1 - Timesheets

	Item 4D - CRTPA Attorney Contract
	Attach 1 - June Agenda Item
	Attach 2 - Draft Professional Services Agreement 

	Item 6A - FTP Update
	Attach 1 - Draft Presentation

	Item 6B - Financial Statements
	Attach 1 - FY 2023 CRTPA Annual Financial Statements

	Item 6C - CRTPA Budget
	Attach 1 - CRTPA FY 2025 Operating Budget
	Attach 2 - CRTPA FY 2025 Unclassified Contractual Services Budget
	Attach 3 - CRTPA FY 2025 Operating and Contractual Services Budget

	Item 6D - LRTP
	Attach 1 - Draft Presentation

	Item 6E - N Monroe Plan
	Attach 1 - Draft Report LINK
	Attach 2 - Appendices LINK
	Attach 3 - Public Comment
	Attach 4 - Draft Presentation

	Item 9A - Future Meetings
	Item 9B - Committee Actions
	Item 9C - Utilization Report
	Attach 1 - PL Funds
	Attach 2 - SU Funds

	Item 9D - Correspondence
	Attach 1 - Apportionment Plan
	Attach 2 - Raa Middle School




